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Vision

“To remain market leader and technology pace 
setter in the engineering and electronics 
industry by utilizing the high-tech engineering 
expertise of the Siemens Group worldwide. To 
maintain our strong and prominent local 
presence.”
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 Providing quality to our customers at competitive prices, to their complete 
satisfaction

 Generating earnings sufficient to ensure a secure future for the company and 
to protect and increase our shareholders / stakeholders’ investment

 Enhancing creativity and job satisfaction of our employees by providing 
opportunities for personal development, limited only by their own ability and 
drive

 Contributing to the national economy, whilst realizing strong sense of 
responsibility to society and the environment 

 Enhancing the investment of our customers through human excellence, our 
technology, our processes, our high standards of quality and financial strength

 Supporting and striving for technology transfer to Pakistan through our global 
resources and local presence

Mission
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Overall Corporate Strategies

People excellence, portfolio expansion, 
operational excellence and corporate 
responsibility are the foundations of our 
corporate strategy to achieve our vision and 
mission.

> Ensuring management commitment to quality

> Embedding high level of quality in all spheres of our operations through professional 
tools and methodologies, ensuring that employees at all levels master these tools in 
carrying out their missions within the company, while observing all safety regimens, 
environmental preservations and applicable statutory and regulatory compliance 

> Measuring and monitoring customer satisfaction, competitiveness and customer focus 
and benefit, implementing corrective measures where required and ensuring continual 
improvement

> Focused training and development of the employees to enhance their technical and 
managerial expertise, making the company an employer of choice, monitoring em-
ployee satisfaction and implementing measures for its continuous enhancement, 
continually taking cognizance of managerial practices detrimental to high perfor-
mance culture

> Competence and knowledge management to focus on enhancing human excellence 
using professional methodologies with strategic planning and competence manage-
ment as concurrent processes

> Monitoring performances of processes and taking timely action for their standardiza-
tion and optimization
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We stand for our Values

Responsible 
Excellent 
Innovative

Responsible

> We obey the law
> We respect the dignity of all people
> We foster health and safety
> We conduct business in a truthful and 

transparent manner
> We are fair in our relationship with 

competitors and stakeholders
> We honor commitments
> We respect property
> We strive for the protection of the en-

vironment
> We are committed to good corporate 

citizenship
> We are fully engaged and empowered 

to achieve the best results

Excellent

> We set best-in-class goals and achieve 
them

> We are passionate
> We are willing to go the extra mile
> We are disciplined and act fast and 

decisively
> We always strive for improvements and 

perfect quality
> We deeply understand our customers’ 

needs and challenges
> We systematically develop our personal 

skills and leverage our full potential 
> We interact in an efficient and pragma-

tic way
> We embrace change to ensure we are 

competitive in the future

Innovative

> We create innovations that give our 
customers a unique competitive edge

> We act as entrepreneurs
> We are creative and open to new ideas
> We are ingenious and visionary
> We are trendsetters
> We constantly challenge the status quo

“We are committed to ethical and respon-
sible actions, achieving high performance 
and excellent results while being innova-
tive to create sustainable value“

Highest performance with the highest ethics
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Business Conduct 
Guidelines

1. Basic Behavioral Requirements

1.1 Behavior which complies with Law
 Observance of law and the legal system is a fundamen-

tal principle for our Company. Every employee / director 
shall obey the laws and regulations of the legal systems 
within which he / she is acting. Violations of the law 
must be avoided under all circumstances. Regardless  of  
the  sanction  foreseen  by  the  law,  any director / em-
ployee guilty of a violation will be liable to disciplinary 
consequences because of the violation and dereliction 
of his / her duties.

1.2 Mutual respect, honesty and integrity
 We respect the personal dignity, privacy, and personal 

rights of every individual. We work together with indi-
viduals of various ethnic backgrounds, cultures, religi-
ons, ages, disabilities, races, sexual identity, world view 
and gender. We are open, honest and stand by our res-
ponsibilities. 

 We are reliable partners and make no promises we can-
not keep.

1.3 Responsibility for the Reputation of Siemens
 To  a  substantial  degree,  the  reputation  of  Siemens  

is determined by our actions and by the way each and 
every one of us presents and conducts himself/herself. 
Illegal or inappropriate behavior on the part of even a 
single employee / director can cause the Company con-
siderable damage.

 Every  director  /  employee  should  be  concerned  with 
maintaining and promoting the good reputation of the 
Company.

1.4 Management, Responsibility and Supervision
 The  culture  of  integrity  and  compliance  in  an  orga-

nization starts at the top. All managers must fulfill their 
duties  of  organization  and  supervision.  All  managers 
bear responsibility for all employees entrusted to them. 
All managers must earn respect by exemplary personal 
behavior,  performance,  openness,  and  social  compe-
tence.

 Each manager must also set clear, ambitious and reali-
stic goals and lead by example.
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 Managers should permit their employees as much indi-
vidual  responsibility  and  lee-way  as  possible,  while 
making  it  clear  that  compliance  is  required  under  
all circumstances, at all times. All managers shall also 
be accessible in case employees wish to raise compli-
ance concerns, ask questions or discuss a professional 
or personal problem. These responsibilities of managers 
do not relieve employees of their own responsibilities. 
It is the responsibility of all managers to see to it that 
there are no violations of laws within their area of res-
ponsibility that proper supervision could have preven-
ted.

 In particular, the following duties apply to 
managers:
1.  The manager must carefully select employees 

based on their personal and professional qualifica-
tions and suitability. The duty of due care increases 
with the significance of the task the employee must 
perform (duty of selection).

2. The manager must give precise, complete and 
binding instructions to employees, especially with 
regard to compliance with the law (duty to give 
instructions).

3. The manager must ensure that compliance with the 
law is continuously monitored (duty of monito-
ring).

4. The manager must clearly communicate to emplo-
yees the importance of integrity and compliance in 
everyday  business.  He/she  must  also  communi-
cate  that violations of the law are unacceptable 
and will have employment consequences (duty of 
communication).

2. Treatment of Business Partners and 
Third Parties

2.1 Fair Competition and Anti-Trust Laws
 Every employee is obliged to abide by the rules of fair 

competition. Employees may not:
- talk  to  competitors  about  prices,  output,  capa-

cities, sales, bids, profits, profit margins, costs, 
methods of distribution or any other parameter 
that determines or influences the Company‘s com-
petitive behavior with the aim to solicit parallel 
behavior from the competitor,

- enter into an agreement with a competitor not to 
compete,  to  restrict  dealings  with  suppliers,  to  
submit bogus  offers  for  bidding  or  to  divide  up  
customers, markets, territories or production pro-
grams,

- have  any  influence  on  the  resale  prices  charged  
by our purchasers, or attempt to make them restrict 
the export or import of goods supplied by Siemens.

2.2 Anti-Corruption: Offering and Granting 
Advantages

 We compete fairly for orders with the quality and the 
price of our innovative products and services, not by 
offering improper benefits to others. As a result, no 
employee may directly or indirectly offer, promise, grant 
or authorize the giving of money or anything else of 
value to a government official to influence official action 
or obtain an improper advantage

2.3 Anti-Corruption: Demanding and Accepting 
Advantages

 Employees are not permitted to use their jobs to solicit, 
to demand, accept, obtain or be promised advantages.

2.4 Political Contributions, Charitable Donations 
and Sponsoring

 Siemens does not make political contributions (dona-
tions to politicians, political parties or political organiza-
tions). As a responsible member of society, Siemens 
makes monetary or product donations for education and 
science, art and culture, and social and humanitarian 
projects.

2.5 Government Procurement
 In all of Siemens‘ dealings and interactions with govern-

ments, we act in a manner that is transparent, honest 
and accurate.
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2.6 Anti-money Laundering
 It is Siemens‘ objective to conduct business with repu-

table customers, consultants and business partners who 
are  involved  in  lawful  business  activities  and  whose 
funds  are  derived  from  legitimate  sources.  We  do  
not facilitate money laundering.

2.7 Trade Controls
 Siemens complies with applicable export controls and 

customs laws and regulations in the countries where it 
does business.

2.8 Working with Suppliers
 Siemens as a company expects its suppliers to share 

Siemens‘ values and comply with all applicable laws.

3. Avoiding Conflicts Of Interest 

 It is the duty of Siemens employees to make business 
decisions in the best interest of Siemens, not based on 
their own personal interests. Conflicts of interest arise 
when employees engage in activities or advance perso-
nal interests at the expense of Siemens‘ interests.

3.1 Competing with Siemens
 An employee may not operate or assist a company that 

competes  with  Siemens  or  engage  in  any  competing 
activities.

3.2 Sideline Work
 Employees may not engage in sideline work that com-

petes with Siemens. 

3.3 Interests in Third Companies
 Employees who directly or indirectly hold or acquire a 

stake in a competitor company, must disclose this fact 
to their personnel department if this stake gives them 
the opportunity to exert influence on the management 
of that company.

4. Handling Of Company Property

 There  are  many  devices  and  pieces  of  equipment  in 
Siemens offices and workshops. These are used for 
company business only and not for personal gains.

5. Handling Of Information

5.1 Records and Financial Integrity
 Open and effective communication requires accurate 

and truthful reporting. Siemens is also required to main-
tain sound  processes  and  controls  so  that  transac-
tions  are executed according to management‘s autho-
rization.

5.2 Confidentiality
 Confidentiality  is  maintained  with  regard  to  Siemens‘ 

internal confidential or proprietary information that has 
not been made known to the public.

5.3 Data Protection and Data  Security
 Access to the Intranet and Internet, worldwide electronic 

information exchange and dialogue, and electronic 
business dealings are all crucial to the effectiveness of 
each and every one of us, and for the success of the 
business as a whole. However, the advantages of elect-
ronic communication are tied to risks in terms of perso-
nal privacy protection and data security. 

 Personal data may only be collected processed, or used 
insofar as it is necessary for predetermined, clear, and 
legitimate purposes.

5.4 Insider Trading Rules
 People  who  have  inside  information  with  regard  to 

Siemens or another company, such as a customer, sup-
plier or joint venture partner whose securities are ad-
mitted  to  trading  on  a  stock  exchange  or  an  orga-
nized securities market, are not allowed to trade in these 
companies‘ securities or in financial instruments the 
prices of which depend directly or indirectly on these 
companies‘ securities. 
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 Inside information is any specific information which is 
not public knowledge relating to Siemens or such other 
issuer of insider securities, which, if it became publicly 
known, would likely have a significant effect on the 
price of the insider security.

6.  Environment, Safety and Health

6.1 Environment and Technical Safety
 Protecting  the  environment  and  conserving  natural 

resources are high priorities for our Company. Through 
management  leadership  and  employee  commitment, 
Siemens strives to conduct its operations in a manner 
that is safe for the environment and continually im-
proves environmental performance.

6.2  Work Safety
 Protecting  the  health  and  safety  of  employees  in  the 

workplace is a high priority for Siemens. It is the respon-
sibility of everyone to foster Siemens‘ efforts to conduct 
its operations in a safe manner.

7. Complaints and Comments

 All employees may lodge a complaint with their super-
visor, their compliance officer, personnel manager or 
some other personal unit designated for this purpose.

 There is a special process for handling complaints rela-
ted to accounting practices.

 All complaints can be submitted both confidentially and 
anonymously,  and  all  complaints  will  be  investigated. 
Corrective measures will be implemented, if necessary.

8. Compliance Implementation And 
Monitoring

 The management of Siemens throughout the world 
shall actively foster the distribution of the Business Con-
duct Guidelines.

 Compliance  with  the  law  and  observance  of  the  
Business Conduct Guidelines is monitored worldwide in 
all Siemens companies on a regular basis. This is done 
in accordance with applicable national procedures and 
legal provisions.

 An extensive compliance organization is in place in the 
company  to  ensure  that  the  Siemens  compliance  
program is enforced.

In all of Siemens‘ dealings and 
interactions with governments, we 
act in a manner that is transparent, 
honest and accurate.

Our Customer - Our Strength
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Six Years Summary 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
 Rupees in ‘000 

Trading Results
New orders 12,353,737  13,824,146  13,337,147  21,013,900  16,000,855  52,236,070 
Net turnover 13,039,194  13,834,074  15,087,935  26,248,842  36,149,390  26,880,742 
Export of goods and services 296,459  145,083  510,864  487,959  439,809  1,462,098 
Contracts executed outside Pakistan 1,892,413  2,584,064  3,774,444  10,674,064  21,507,206  12,374,212 
Gross profit 327,657  915,209  1,678,564  3,880,997  3,984,416  4,030,159 
Operating (loss) / profit (559,586)  (22,360)  273,648  1,989,954  2,327,146  2,599,965 
(Loss) / profit before tax from continuing operations  (758,158)  373,802  158,178  1,590,067  2,144,439  2,564,203 
(Loss) / profit before tax from discontinued operations (62,701)  (437,416)  –    –    –    –   
(Loss) / profit before tax (820,859)  (63,614)  158,178  1,590,067  2,144,439  2,564,203 
(Loss) / profit after tax (974,943)  (5,153)  67,408  1,011,279  1,365,169  1,679,068 
(Loss) / Earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation  
    and amortisation

(455,901)  185,261  460,323  1,909,968  2,440,439  2,796,014 

Interim dividend –  –    –    247,411  247,411  247,411 
Final dividend 164,941  989,644  82,470  494,822  494,822  494,822 

Financial Position
Share capital 82,470  82,470  82,470  82,470  82,470  82,470 
Reserves and Retained Earnings 4,382,234  6,437,914  6,526,236  6,951,161  6,828,723  6,205,787 
Property, plant and equipment 1,383,047  1,544,021  1,657,036  1,678,522  1,662,500  1,589,664 
Net current assets 1,154,390  2,740,419  2,740,825  3,342,129  3,230,868  2,767,305 
Long-term / deferred liabilities 52,283  60,731  82,343  171,675  197,857  106,091 

Investors Information 
Gross profit ratio 2.51% 6.62% 11.13% 14.79% 11.02% 14.99%
EBITDA Margin to sales -3.50% 1.34% 3.05% 7.28% 6.75% 10.40%
Return on equity / capital employed -21.84% -0.08% 1.02% 14.38% 19.75% 26.70%
Inventory turnover ratio  (in times)  5.01  4.09  3.80  5.52  7.18  5.89 
Inventory turnover ratio ( no. of days )  73  89  96  66  51  62 
Debtor turnover ratio  ( in times)  2.04  1.78  1.57  2.20  2.93  3.03 
Debtor turnover ratio ( no. of days)  179  205  232  166  125  121 
Creditor turnover ratio ( in times)  1.85  1.88  1.70  2.19  2.53  2.17 
Creditor turnover ratio ( no. of days)  197  194  215  167  145  168 
Operating cycle (no. of days)  55  101  114  66  31  15 
Total assets turnover ratio ( in times )  0.74  0.69  0.66  1.07  1.47  1.27 
Fixed assets turnover ratio ( in times )  8.91  8.71  9.12  15.71  22.23  17.22 
Current ratio  1.09  1.23  1.19  1.19  1.19  1.15 
Quick / acid test  ratio  0.92  0.98  0.96  0.98  0.93  0.90 
Cash dividend per share (Rs)  20  120  10  90  90  90 
Dividend yield ratio  0.02  0.150  0.009  0.08  0.06  0.07 
Interest cover ratio  (3.08)  0.07  3.16  18.69  28.29  23.94 
Breakup value per share  (Rs)  541.37  790.64  801.35  852.87  838.03  762.49 
Market value per share (Rs)  903 800 1070 1160 1415  1,210 
Share price during the year 
   High  (Rs)  1,218  1,050  1,250  1,500 1,415  2,054 
   Low  (Rs)  590 630 810 973 685  1,209 
(Loss) / Earnings per share (Rs)  (118.22)  (0.62)  8.17  122.62  165.54  203.60 
(Loss) / Profit before tax in percent to sales -6.30% -0.46% 1.05% 6.06% 5.93% 9.54%
(Loss) / Profit after tax in percent of sales -7.48% -0.04% 0.45% 3.85% 3.78% 6.25%

Cash Flows  
Net cash flow from operating activities 552,246  1,799,955  239,820  (1,689,177)  (1,871,088)  2,727,427 
Net cash flow from investing activities (19,756)  14,240  (73,292)  (197,953)  (157,611)  (109,946)
Net cash flow from financing activities 760,356  (82,470)  (494,822)  (742,233)  (742,233)  (1,072,879)
Net change in cash and cash equivalents 1,292,846  1,731,725  (328,294)  (2,629,363)  (2,770,932)  1,544,602 

Key Operating and Financial data

 10 Information for Stakeholders

 10 Key Operating and Financial data
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Company Information
Siemens Pakistan

Board of Directors
Bernhard Wilhelm Niessing  Chairman
Guenter Zwickl   Managing Director
Manzoor Ahmed   Director
Sebastian Andreas Brachert  Director
Naeemuddin Khan   Director
Udo Wilhelm Niehage  Director
Marco Jochen Schiffer  Director
Helmut Steidle   Director

Company Secretary
Mohammad Rafi      

Management
Guenter Zwickl   Chief Executive Officer
Murtaza Abbas   Chief Financial Officer

Bankers
Bank Alfalah Limited
Barclays Bank PLC
BNP Paribas (Dubai) 
Deutsche Bank AG
Habib Bank Limited
HSBC Bank Middle East Limited
MCB Bank Limited
Royal Bank of Scotland (Dubai)
Standard Chartered Bank (Pakistan) Limited

Auditors 
Ernst & Young Ford Rhodes Sidat Hyder 
Chartered Accountants

Tax Advisors 
KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.  
  
Registrar and Share Transfer Agent  
THK Associates (Pvt.) Limited, Karachi 
  
Registered Office  
B-72, Estate Avenue, Sindh Industrial Trading Estates Karachi-75700
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Chief Executive Officer‘s Profile

Guenter Zwickl

Skills and experience

Guenter Zwickl’s distinguished career with Siemens dates back to 1978 when 
he joined the company’s infrastructure business for traffic surveillance solu-
tions in Austria before moving to Hong Kong. He subsequently managed large 
projects as Project Director for various projects in Egypt, Cameroon, and the 
former East Germany and, between 1995 and 2000, Zwickl was General Ma-
nager of the company’s communication cable and network division in Indone-
sia and of MECC, a Siemens joint venture in Thailand. 

Between 2000 and 2008, he held various international Managing Director 
positions for Siemens. From 2008 to 2012, Zwickl headed Nokia Siemens Net-
works’ global research and development (R&D) coordination out of Poland and 
later India, while at the same time running the R&D centers in these countries. 
His latest appointment as chief executive officer and managing director for 
Siemens Pakistan came into effect October 1, 2012. 

He holds a degree in Telecommunications and electronics from HTBL St..Polten 
Austria

Other directorships and offices

Board Committee Membership
HR Committee  – Siemens Pakistan

 18 Directors’ Report
 33 Board Committees
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Chairman‘s Profile

Bernhard Niessing

Skills and experience

Mr. Bernhard Niessing is the CEO of the Industry Sector for Siemens Middle 
East based in Dubai since 2009. He is responsible for the sector’s activities in 
16 countries across the region.

Mr. Niessing joined Siemens AG in Düsseldorf as a project engineer in 1988 
and moved to the Sales and Engineering department as Head of Offers, Orders 
and Engineering Processing in 1991, Medium and High Voltage Division, in the 
Energy Sector. He subsequently held various roles in different Siemens busi-
ness units and, in 2000, was promoted to Vice President and Head of the 
Protection and Power Quality Business of the Smart Grid  Division, in Infrastruc-
ture and Cities Sector. After four years in this role, he was appointed Vice 
President Head of Low Voltage Power Distribution Product Business of the 
Industry Automation Division, in Industry Sector. 

He has a degree in electrical engineering from the University of Applied Sci-
ences in Düsseldorf, Germany.

Other directorships and offices

Industry Lead
Industry Sector – Middle East

Board Committee Membership 
Audit Committee – Siemens Pakistan  

Chairman

 12 Our Company
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Manzoor Ahmed
Skills and experience
Mr. Ahmed holds the position of Chief Operating Officer since year 
2010 and is also acting as the Managing Director for National In-
vestment Trust (NIT). Prior to this he has served NIT in various 
managerial and lead capacities.

His service at NIT spans over a period of 24 years in areas such as 
investment strategy development, portfolio management and 
restructuring, supervision of stock market operations and corpo-
rate governance matters. He also represents NIT as its Nominee 
Director on Board of various companies.
 
He holds a Master’s degree in Business Administration, Diploma in 
Banking and is also a Certified Director from Pakistan Institute of 
Corporate Governance.

Other directorships and offices

Director
•	 Bannu	Woolen	Mills	Limited
•	 Linde	(Pakistan)	Limited
•	 General	Tyre	&	Rubber	Co.	Limited
•	 Millat	Tractors	Limited
•	 Nishat	(Chunian)	Limited
•	 Service	Industries	Limited
•	 Soneri	Bank	Limited
•	 Mari	Petroleum	Company	Limited
•	 Fauji	Fertilizers	Company	Limited

Board Committee Membership
Audit Committee – Siemens Pakistan

Sebastian Andreas Brachert
Skills and experience
Dr. Sebastian Brachert is the General Counsel for EMEA and Cross 
Sectors for Siemens AG, Germany, a position he holds since March 
2008.

Prior to this assignment he was Head of Siemens Legal Services 
(Munich) with special responsibility for Corporate Law, M&A, An-
titrust, Capital Markets, Finance Law, Real Estate Law, Legal matters 
for Central Procurement, Venture Capital, Central Departments, 
Siemens IT Solutions and Services, Siemens Enterprise Networks 
and Coordinator for Legal Departments in Asia / Australia / C.I.S.

From 1997 until 2000 Dr. Brachert was Head of Legal for Siemens 
Financial Services and Head of Corporate Legal Affairs Finance Law 
(Project- and Vendor Finance, Capital Markets, IPOs and Treasury), 
Munich.

From 1993 until 1997 he was Head of Corporate Legal Affairs Fi-
nance and Real Estate Law, Central Legal Department Siemens AG, 
Munich and a year with Norton Rose, Solicitors, in London.

In 1990 Dr. Brachert joined Siemens in Erlangen/Germany where 
he was a Legal Advisor for Turnkey Projects for Transportation 
Systems, Automation and Industrial Plants, Central Legal Depart-
ment Siemens AG.

Other directorships and offices

Director
•	 Siemens	Ltd./AELE,	Saudi	Arabia
•	 Siemens	Middle	East	Ltd.,	Abu	Dhabi

Board Committee Membership
•	 HR	Committee	-	Siemens	Pakistan

German Business Association (BDI), Legal Committee
•	 Member	of	the	Board

DirectorDirector

Directors‘ Profile

 18 Directors’ Report
 33 Board Committees
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Directors‘ Profile

Naeemuddin Khan
Skills and experience
Mr. Naeemuddin Khan is serving the Bank of Punjab as President 
& CEO since Sept 2008. He has over 33 years diversified Internati-
onal Banking experience. He has the honor of delivering presenta-
tions at Asian Development Bank, Manila regarding setting up of 
Restructuring Bodies in Asian Countries. He also represented Paki-
stan in Egypt‘s International Economic Forum Cairo and delivered 
presentations on the Pakistan’s Financial reforms and resolutions 
of the non-performing loans in Pakistan. He started his banking 
career in ANZ Grindlays Bank in 1978. 

He served as Branch Managers of Grindlays Bank in Lahore, Isla-
mabad and Rawalpindi and other senior positions. In 1991 he joined 
Emirates International Bank as its Chief Manager later he joined 
United Bank Ltd. as SEVP Special Assets Management and Legal 
Division having default portfolio of over Rs. 30 Billion in Pakistan 
and abroad which he successfully resolved. In 2001 he was secon-
ded by the Prime Minister of Pakistan and then Governor State Bank 
of Pakistan to Corporate & Industrial Restructuring Corporation 
(CIRC) as Member Banking. He developed functional layout of the 
Corporation and successfully handled all its operations for 6 years 
and was pioneer in setting up the CIRC from the start to the end 
till 2006. In CIRC, he managed recoveries of the NPL defaulted 
amounts of six Nationalized banks’ portfolio of over Rs. 142 Billion 
and in 2004 he was awarded Muzaffar Memorial Gold Medal by 
SBP Governor in recognition of meritorious services to the Banking 
Industry in Pakistan. He also served Pak Libya Holding Co. (Pvt) Ltd 
as the Managing Director / CEO from June 2006 to August 2008.

Other directorships and offices

President & CEO
Bank of Punjab Limited

Board Committee Membership
Chairman Audit Committee – Siemens Pakistan
Chairman HR Committee  – Siemens Pakistan

Udo Niehage
Skills and experience
Dr. Niehage is the Senior Vice President at Siemens AG, currently 
responsible as Head of Government Affairs -Berlin and Company 
Representative for the Energy Transition. 

He started his career at Siemens in 1988 as Head of Sales Engineer 
and Project Manager. In 1992, he moved to ABB in Mannheim, 
Germany, where he worked as Head of Engineering and Techno-
logy Department.

After various management positions at ABB in Germany and Swit-
zerland, he joined as Head of Sales and Energy Trading at BEWAG 
AG in Berlin. In the year 2000, Dr. Niehage returned back to Sie-
mens as Head of Medium Voltage Switchgear Subdivision. One 
year later, he became responsible for the whole Medium Voltage 
Division.

From October 2003 to December 2007 Dr. Niehage was President 
of the Siemens AG Power Transmission and Distribution Group 
until January 2008 when he assumed the position of Chief Execu-
tive Officer of Power Transmission Division of Siemens AG.

After studying electrical engineering (power systems) and general 
business administration at Technical University TU Munich, Ger-
many, he received a doctor`s degree in engineering from Technical 
University, RWTH Aachen, Germany.

DirectorDirector
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Directors‘ Profile

Marco Schiffer
Director

Skills and experience
Mr. Schiffer is the Partner in Corporate Finance Audit, Siemens AG. 
A position he holds since February 2012.

He started his career at Siemens in 2009 as Director Transaction 
Support, Munich, Germany. In 2011, he proceeded to Iselin, USA as 
Director Operational Audit. 

From September 1997 to September 2009, he was associated with 
KPMG AG, Cologne, Germany and PwC AG, Düsseldorf, Germany 
where he build up his acumen in the fields of Audit, Advisory and 
Consultancy. 

He is a Certified Public Auditor and Tax Consultant in Germany. He 
also holds a Masters degree in International Management.

Other directorships and offices

Board Committee Membership
Audit Committee – Siemens Pakistan

Helmut Steidle
Director

Skills and experience
Mr. Helmut Steidle is Vice President of Corporate Development 
Strategy for Middle East and Africa, located at Siemens AG Head-
quarters Munich, Germany, a position he holds since 2001.

During 1993-1998 he worked as a Deputy Commercial Director in 
Johannesburg, South Africa, followed by Executive Chief Financial 
Officer and Member of the Board Siemens Nixdorf Information 
System Pty. Ltd. for Australia and New Zealand, located in Sydney 
Australia.

From April 1998 until January 2001 Mr. Steidle was Vice president 
and CFO for Siemens ICP Computer Systems Americas and Asia/
Pacific located in Silicon Valley / San Jose.

He worked during 1984 -1987 as a Commercial Manager for Sales 
for South / West Europe within Siemens AG Data / Information 
System.  

He started his career at Siemens in 1972 and represented various 
national and international management positions for Siemens AG.

Other directorships and offices

Director
•	 Siemens	SSK,	Tehran,	Iran	
•	 Siemens	S.A.E.	Egypt

Vice President
•	 Corporate	Strategies	Siemens	AG,		Germany

Board Committee Membership
•	 HR	Committee	–	Siemens	Pakistan
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Munich, December 13, 2013

Dear Shareholder,
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The Board of Directors is pleased to present 
the Annual Report and the audited financial 
statements for the financial year ended 
September 30, 2013 together with auditor’s 
report thereon.

In financial year 2013 the Company has produced after tax loss of Rs. 

975 million. The main reasons for this loss situation were termination 

of a major contract by Civil Aviation Authority (CAA) and 

restructuring, rightsizing, portfolio adjustment and process 

optimization activities which continued throughout the year.
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On September 6, 2013, the Company was served a notice of termination of contract 
by CAA, relating to Power Supply and Telecommunication Network (Package 8b) at 
New Benazir Bhutto International Airport, Islamabad, due to delays on the project. 
The value of the contract was Rs. 1,992 million.  The Company filed a law suit in 
the Islamabad High Court challenging the termination notice of CAA and 
requested that the same should be declared as null and void as project delay were 
due to the circumstances beyond the control of the Company and mainly on 
account of delays from other contractors hired by CAA. The Islamabad High Court 
suspended the termination notice with specific direction to CAA to allow the 
Company to execute the work awarded under the contract. However, CAA filed an 
appeal against these orders. The Appellate Court admitted the appeal for regular 
hearing and issued order for maintenance of status quo. In view of CAA’s behavior 
and uncertainty about the outcome of cases, the Company, in order to cover its 
obligation and expected losses under the contract, made a provision of Rs. 547 
million as a best estimate, to cover the losses resulting from termination, in the 
financial statements for the year ended September 30, 2013.

The Company, however, still exploring options for amicable settlement of this 
matter with CAA.

The Board considers sustainability as the key to success in the present competitive 
environment and is very much focused to enforce appropriate actions to maintain 
future business volume and profitability. For this purpose, the restructuring, 
rightsizing, portfolio adjustment activities, which were initiated last year, 
continued during the year across the Company. Accordingly, the Company 
incurred employee separation costs of Rs. 464 million during the year, which has 
significantly affected the profit of the Company for the current year. 

Further, the Board also initiated measures to achieve cost efficiencies by 
optimizing the processes in its Power Transformer unit. As a result, provisions on 
account of early separation scheme, technical risks on raw materials and 
impairment of fixed assets of Rs. 336 million are recognized in the financial 
statements.
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Performance of several business segments on an overall basis remained below the 
expectations, mainly due to onetime cost impacts as highlighted above. As a 
result, except for the Energy Segment, all segments reported a loss for the year. 
The directors and management are closely monitoring the performance of all the 
Segments especially those in a loss situation and measures are being taken with a 
focus to achieve continued improvements in productivity and efficiency while 
optimizing cost and processes to ensure sustainable growth of the Company. The 
reorganization, restructuring and optimization of processes taken this year will 
have positive impacts in the coming years and the Company is expected to recover 
to profitability in near future.

In view of availability of significant reserves and cash flows, the Board is pleased 
to announce a final cash dividend of Rs. 20 per ordinary share, in order to 
maintain consistency and meet the expectation of the shareholders.

The Board of Directors remained vigilant throughout the year and kept a close eye 
on the situation, which is evident from the fact that seven Board meetings were 
held during the year, with the aim to achieve profitable development of the 
business for the Company.

We stand for our values and are committed to ethical and responsible actions, 
achieving high performance and excellent results and being innovative to create 
sustainable values. Compliance with internal and external rules and regulations 
and business conduct guidelines, as usual, remained top priority of the Board and 
management with zero tolerance for non compliant behavior and clear tone from 
the top that only clean business is Siemens business.
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Company’s Business and Performance Review

A Company level overview of performance during the year has been summarized 
as follows:

New Orders

During the year, new orders of Rs 12.4 billion (2012: Rs 13.8 billion) have been 
received showing a decline of 11% over the corresponding year. The main 
contributor to new orders was Energy Segment with 57% share which includes 
orders for the design, supply, erection, testing and commissioning of 220 KV and 
132 KV substations and supply of transformers to public utilities. Infrastructure 
and Cities and Industry Segments contributed 21% and 19% of new orders 
respectively.

Sales 

Company’s sales volume decreased by 6% to Rs. 13 billion for the financial year 
ended September 30, 2013, as compared to Rs 13.8 billion in the previous year. 
Main reason for the decline is the delay in execution of some projects due to 
various reasons beyond the control of the Company. In sales too, the Energy 
Segment was the main contributor with 58% share followed by Industry 
contributing 22% of sales for the year.
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Profit

During the year the Company incurred a loss before tax of Rs 821 million as 
compared to a loss before tax of Rs 64 million last year. As elaborated earlier, the 
main reasons for loss included termination of contract by CAA relating to Power 
supply and Telecommunication Network (Package 8b) at New Benazir Bhutto 
International Airport, Islamabad and onetime cost effects on account of 
restructuring, rightsizing, portfolio adjustments and process optimization 
activities undertaken by the Company during the year. After accounting for the tax 
charge for the year, including the minimum tax, the after tax loss stood at Rs. 975 
million. 

Cash flows 

Consumption of inventories and collection of receivables during the year have 
resulted in the Company’s cash inflow from operating activities of Rs 552 million. 
Last year’s cash inflow from operating activities of Rs. 1.8 billion was mainly due 
to collection of some long outstanding receivables in Dubai. 

Earnings per share

The loss per share after tax is Rs 118.22 (2012: loss per share of Rs. 0.62). 
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Performance of Business Segments 

ENERGY

During the year, new orders of Rs 7.1 billion have been received showing a decline 
of 12% over the previous year. The main contributors for new orders were High 
Voltage Substations projects awarded by various customers in Pakistan and 
Afghanistan and orders for the supply of Transformers from various power utility 
companies.

The segment has achieved a sales volume of Rs. 7.5 billion showing a decrease of 
4% over previous year. While High Voltage Substation projects posted an increase 
of 23%, Energy Service witnessed 72% reduction in Sales (cyclical effect) as a major 
service outage was completed last year. 

The profit at segment level has declined significantly as compared to the previous 
year and stands at Rs. 296 million. The main reason for this decline is onetime cost 
effects relating to restructuring measures taken in Power Transformer. 

The segment’s business with utilities remained under price pressure at the hands 
of local competitors and ambitious new market entrants from China. The segment 
is trying to offset this effect, through product quality and procurement excellence. 
Moreover, the segment will continue to enhance focus on private sector and 
increase its market share in the Independent Power Plant Industry taking leverage 
of its proximity to the local business.

 18 Directors’ Report
 33 Board Committees

23 34 Our Technology - Our Business - Sustainability  57 Financial Data  99 Shareholders’ Information



Directors‘ Report

24  10 Information for Stakeholders 2 Our Profile  12 Our Company

INDUSTRY

New orders worth Rs 2.3 billion were secured during the year showing a decline of 
39% over the previous year mainly due to certain portfolio adjustments, including 
discontinuation of Generating Sets and locally manufactured motors businesses. 

The segment achieved a sales volume of Rs. 2.9 billion showing a decline of 22% 
which is in line with decline in new orders.

The segment has incurred a loss of Rs 66 million mainly due to onetime cost 
impacts of the restructuring measures taken by the Company.

With the current status of industrial growth and lack of investor confidence, 
future for Industry segment in the short term is challenging. However, 
restructuring measures including portfolio adjustments will lead to improved 
profitability and focus on core competencies in future.
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INFRASTRUCTURE AND CITIES

During the year new orders of Rs 2.6 billion were received, showing an increase of 
62% over previous year mainly contributed by Low and Medium Voltage 
(Switchboards). 
 
The Segment achieved sales volume of Rs 2.3 billion showing an increase of 18% as 
compared to previous year. The increase mainly relates to sales of Low and 
Medium Voltage Switchboards.  

Despite improved profitability in Low and Medium Voltage and Smart Grid, the 
Segment incurred a loss of Rs 778 million mainly due to losses in Mobility and 
Logistics. The main reasons for losses included termination of contract by CAA 
relating to Power Supply and Telecommunication Network (Package 8b) at New 
Benazir Bhutto International Airport, Islamabad and cost overruns on Airport 
business projects. 

Although, the future of Mobility and logistics business is to a large extent 
dependent on the outcome of the Court cases and new opportunities in Airport 
business, the Company expects profitable growth in Low and Medium Voltage and 
Smart Grid businesses.
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HEALTH CARE

During the year new orders of Rs 397 million were received, showing an increase 
of 10% whereas there was no material change in sales volume which stands at Rs. 
357 million. 

The segment ended up at a net loss of Rs 96 million during the year mainly due to 
employee separation costs on account of ongoing restructuring activities, cost 
overruns on contracts and non absorption of overheads. 

A long term sustainable growth plan for the segment has been initiated. 
According to this plan and in order to increase market penetration, the 
development of new distribution channels for selective products of Clinical 
Products Division is at finalization stage and will be implemented in Fiscal Year 
2014. It is also planned to enhance capacity building for service business during 
Fiscal Year 2014, which is expected to result in lower maintenance cost of 
equipment under maintenance contract and improved profitability.
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RISKS AND UNCERTAINITIES AND ITS MANAGEMENT

The Company is exposed to the following types of general risks, among 
others, which are mitigated through specific response plans addressing 
them in accordance with the risk strategy.

Operational risks

The operational risks include risks related to customer relationship, project 
management risks, such as timely completion and change in estimates. On the 
operational front, risk also exists with regards to environment, health and safety 
risks and supply chain management risks.

The Company addresses these risks individually in the course of its business 
operations. The management determines risk response strategies for such risks 
which includes avoid, transfer, reduce or accept strategy. 

Financial risks

Financial risks include liquidity risks, credit risks and market risks. Due to the 
volatility of foreign exchange market, the assets and liabilities denominated in 
foreign currencies may result in exchange losses beyond anticipation. The 
liquidity and fund availability with customers particularly with public sector 
organization increases the risk of delay and defaults on receivable collections. 

The Company manages its foreign currency risks by hedging its exposure and 
transfer of risks to customers, wherever possible. In order to limit credit risk, 
credit limits are assigned to customers based on an extensive credit rating 
scorecard. Letters of Credit (LCs) are obtained to cover the credit exposure 
wherever possible. Receivables are monitored regularly and appropriate 
provisions are created against bad and doubtful debts. 
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Compliance risk

Non compliance with local or international laws and regulation may result in 
imposition of penalties, debarment, black listing, license cancellation etc, which 
may eventually affect the business operations and brand name of the Company.

To mitigate such risks, a very comprehensive and effective compliance function is 
in place in the Company. The Business Conduct Guidelines (BCG) clearly defines 
our expectations from all directors, executives and other employees and those 
with whom we conduct business.  Siemens encourages employees and business 
partners to report compliance violations that they encounter, with confidence that 
there will be no adverse consequences. To facilitate the process various reporting 
channels such as Compliance Helpdesk “Tell Us” and Ombudsman have been 
established on Companies website. 

OVERALL FUTURE OUTLOOK 

During the year 2013, Pakistan’s economy remained sluggish with major threats 
emanating from persistent inflation, increasing fiscal deficit, severe energy crisis, 
low investment, falling value of Rupee against major international currencies and 
uncertain law and order situation. The liquidity crunch faced by the government 
and public sector organizations has resulted in delays in award and execution of 
projects, thereby affecting all businesses. With the newly elected government, it is 
expected that the situation will improve in the future. 

The Company aims to counter unfavourable market conditions through customer 
engagement initiatives targeted towards new business development and through 
effective cost and margin management. Initial restructuring measures are 
beginning to take effect and will continue in the future to support the capital-
efficient growth. With portfolio adjustments the Company is focussing more on 
core competencies.

With our diverse energy segment portfolio, the severe energy crisis in the Country 
provides significant business opportunities for the Company.
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APPROPRIATIONS 

Following is the summary of appropriations made during the year.

(Rupees in  thousands)

Retained earnings - October 01, 2012 1,461,509

Net loss after taxation for the year ended September 30, 2013 (974,943)

Appropriations

Final dividend @ Rs. 120 per share for the year ended September 30, 2012 (989,644)

Retained earnings – September 30, 2013 (503,078)

ADHERENCE TO BEST PRACTICIES  
OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

Statement of Compliance 

The Company strictly adheres to the principles of Corporate Governance 
mandated by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan and has 
implemented all the prescribed stipulations. The same have been summarized in 
statement of compliance with best practices of code of corporate governance 
which is also reviewed by the external auditors.

Directors Statements

As required by the Code, the Directors are pleased to state that: 

(a) The  financial  statements,  prepared  by  the  management  of  the Company,  
present fairly its state of affairs, the result of its operations, cash flows and 
changes in equity. 

(b) Proper books of account have been maintained by the Company. 

(c) Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation 
of financial statements. Further, the accounting estimates are based on 
reasonable and prudent judgment. 

(d) International  Accounting  Standards (IAS) and International Financial 
Reporting Standards (IFRS),  as  applicable  in  Pakistan,  have  been  followed  
in preparation  of  financial  statements. 

(e) The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively 
implemented and monitored. 

(f) There are no significant doubts upon the Company’s ability to continue as a 
going concern. 

(g) There has been no material departure from the best practices of corporate 
governance, as detailed in the listing regulations.
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Meetings and activities during the Year   

A summary of the meetings of the Board, Audit Committee and the Human 
Resource and Remuneration Committee, together with attendance therein, is as 
follows:

 

Committees
Board and committee 
composition and attendance Board Audit

Human 
Resource and 
Remuneration

Meetings held 7 4 2

Required to 
attend

Actual 
attendance

Required to 
attend

Actual 
attendance

Required and 
Actual 

attendance

Independent Director

Mr. Naeemuddin Khan 6 6 3 3
(Chairman)

1
(Chairman)

Non – Executive Directors

Mr. Helmut Steidle 7 6 - - 2

Dr. Sebastian Brachert 7 6 - - 2

Mr. Bernhard Niessing 7
7 

(Chairman) 4 4

Mr. Manzoor Ahmed 3 3 - - -

Mr. Stefan Halberstadt 7 7 4 4 -

Mr. Dietmar Siersdorfer 7 5 4 3 -

Executive Director

Mr. Guenter Zwickl 7 7 - - 2

Outgoing Directors

Mr. Bahauddin Khan 1 1 1 1
1

(Chairman)

Mr. Joerg Scheifler 1 1 - - –

Mr. Sohail Wajahat 3 3 - - –

Changes in the Board of Directors 

On completion of 3 years tenure on November 30, 2013, election of directors was 
held on November 28, 2012 in which seven Board members were elected.

Mr. Sohail Wajahat resigned on June 14, 2013 and Mr. Manzoor Ahmed was 
appointed by the Board on June 24, 2013 to fill the casual vacancy.

Subsequent to the year end, Mr. Stefan Halberstadt and Mr. Dietmar Siersdorfer 
resigned from the Board on October 8, 2013 and Dr. Udo Niehage and Mr. Marco 
Schiffer were appointed by the Board to fill the casual vacancy.
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External Auditors 

The present auditors, Ernst & Young Ford Rhodes Sidat Hyder & Co., Chartered 
Accountants retire at the conclusion of the upcoming Annual General Meeting and 
being eligible, offer themselves for reappointment.

As suggested by the Audit Committee, the Board recommends their 
reappointment for the year ending September 30, 2014 by the Shareholders.

Corporate Status  

Siemens Pakistan is a subsidiary of Siemens Aktiengesellschaft, Germany 
(Siemens AG) which is incorporated in Germany and holds 66.10% shares of the 
Company as at September 30, 2013 (subsequent to year end, Siemens AG reported 
acquisition of additional shares of Siemens Pakistan and now its holding in 
Siemens Pakistan is 74.65%). Siemens AG is one of the largest and most diversified 
companies in the world of electronics and electrical engineering. 

PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING

Shares of the Company are listed on Karachi, Lahore and Islamabad stock 
exchanges. The detailed pattern and categories of shareholding of the Company 
including shares held by directors and executives, if any, is shown on pages 99 and 
100 of this Annual Report. 

INVESTMENTS IN RETIREMENT BENEFITS 

The Company maintains Provident and Gratuity funds for its permanent 
employees which are regulated through the respective Board of Trustees. The 
value of investments of these funds as per their respective audited financial 
statements are as follows:

 June 30, 2012 June 30, 2011 June 30, 2010

(Rupees in million)

Provident Fund 750.292 775.792 700.264

 September 30, 2012 September 30, 2011 September 30, 2010

(Rupees in million)

Gratuity Fund 354.896 333.565 371.410

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS 

There have been no material changes or events since September 30, 2013 to the 
date of this report, which has an impact on the financial statements, except the 
declaration of final dividend which is subject to the approval of the Members at 
the forthcoming Annual General Meeting. The effect of such declaration shall be 
reflected in the next year’s financial statements.
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The Board places on record its gratitude to extremely valued shareholders, 
customers, suppliers, contractors and financial institutions for their support, 
confidence and co-operation which enabled us to sail through this difficult period. 
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On behalf of the Board

Bernhard Niessing    Guenter Zwickl
Chairman     Chief Executive Officer
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Board Committees
Terms of Reference of Audit Committee

1. Review of quarterly, half-yearly and annual financial state-
ments before their consideration by the Board.

2. Review of preliminary announcements of results prior to pub-
lication.

3. Detailed review of Board and management letters issued by 
the external auditors and management’s response thereto.

4. Facilitating the external audit and discussion with external 
auditors of major observations arising from interim and final 
audits and any other significant matter. 

5. Ensuring  coordination  between  the  internal  and  external  
auditors  of  the listed company.

6. Ascertaining that the internal control systems, including finan-
cial and operational controls, are adequate and effective and 
reviewing the company’s statement on internal control systems 
prior to endorsement by the Board of Directors.

7. Review of compliance with all relevant laws and regulations 
and other statutory requirements.

8. Monitoring compliance with the best practices of corporate 
governance.

9. Determination of appropriate measures to safeguard 
Company’s assets.

10. Review of related party transactions.

11. Reviewing the scope, extent and adequacy of resources in in-
ternal audit function. 

12. Review of internal audit progress reports and internal investi-
gations reports and discuss significant findings.

13. Review of major receivables of the Company including collec-
tion action plan and adequacy of provisioning available there-
against. 

Terms of Reference of Human Resources and 
Remuneration Committee 

1. Review and recommend to the Board HR policies of the Com-
pany;

 
2. Recommend to the board the selection, evaluation, compen-

sation and succession planning of the CEO; 

3. Recommend to the board the selection, evaluation, compen-
sation  of CFO and Company Secretary; 

4. Review of the Company’s compensation philosophy and strat-
egy with a view to ensure that compensation and benefit levels 
are maintained and aligned with comparable size companies;

5. The Committee may review and recommend to the Board:

i. salary increments, bonus and other pay adjustments in the 
light of a salary review conducted annually; 

ii. changes to the compensation ranges and incentive com-
pensation plan, if any, 

iii. salary adjustments and incentive compensation awards for 
staff;

iv. severance arrangement for staff, if necessary.

6. Consider and approve on recommendations of CEO on such 
matters for key management positions who report directly to 
CEO;

7. Review and assess adequacy of the charter of the Committee;

8. Review, assess and make recommendations to the Board with 
respect to the Business Conduct Guidelines of the Company;

9. Ensure that Director’s attain certification under any Director 
Training Program offered by any institution (local or foreign) 
which meets the criteria specified by SECP; 

10. Atleast once annually, review the senior management structure 
and where appropriate, recommend to the Board any material 
change thereto;

11. Ensure that the Company implements programs and policies 
to attract and retain high caliber executives who will success-
fully lead the organization in their respective areas of respon-
sibility;

12. To investigate and recommend a resolution to the Board of 
major violations of the code of business conduct and ethics 
that may relate to personnel or internal controls relating to 
human resource policies or benefits.;

13. To apprise the Board of any disciplinary action taken against 
any employee;

14. Any other matters relating to Human Resource Management.
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Siemens One

Our Key 
Differentiating Factor
“Top plus is a company-wide Business Excellence 
Program to improve Siemens products, solutions, 
services and processes.”

Basically this is what Siemens One is all 
about – it’s the key factor differentiating us 
from our competitors. Especially in turbu-
lent times, it is one of our most important 
strategies for creating better customer re-
lationships and customer loyalty. The busi-
ness figures in most of the Successful Sie-
mens World from recent years just prove 
that.

Today customer centricity means more 
than delivering excellent products and so-
lutions from a vertical engineering struc-
ture. Above all, it requires a good under-
standing of the customer needs, superior 
support, strategies as well as guidance to 
assist customers in attaining a leading po-
sition in their particular market.

In this context, Siemens One is not just a 
corporate program or a consolidated sales 
channel. Siemens One is our answer for 
customers faced with complex global chal-
lenges.

With the success of the Siemens One ap-
proach, our diversified nature as an enter-
prise can bring a strategic advantage as 
market boundaries are blurring and techno-
logy is revolutionizing all industries alike.

Siemens One is the name of a mindset 
which propagates our unique value propo-
sition as an Integrated Technology Com-
pany gives us the unique ability to further 
enhance customer satisfaction and at the 
same time increase Siemens’ overall share 
of wealth.

It is our answer to the individual needs of 
customers as they confront complex global 
challenges. Unlike the strategies of our 
competitors, Siemens One acts as a corpo-
rate gravity, drawing our activities together 
and enabling us to think, act, and behave 
as one entity. It integrates customer centri-
city on a global basis through Account 
Management and aligned structures and 
processes.

The defining characteristics of this mindset 
are:

1. The belief that Siemens exists for its 
customers – what we  also call our 
“Outside-In” approach 
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2. An ability to translate complex custo-
mer challenges into Siemens products 
and solutions, and

3. A readiness to cross borders of every 
industry and geographic boundaries in 
the pursuit of this vision

Customer centricity and Key Account 
Management
Increasing globalization of markets and 
international harmonization of customer 
processes require Account Managers who 
can coordinate the breadth and depth of 
our entire company portfolio for their cus-
tomers.

Our top customers expect us to give them 
optimal support and to provide one Sie-
mens Account Manager for all their needs.

After a long and successful history of wor-
king with our top customers through an 
effective Account Management system, 
Siemens’ goal today is to integrate Account 
Management as a vital part in all Siemens’ 
global Sales organizations. More than 40 
percent of Siemens revenue is already 
being generated by strong Account Ma-
nagement with established career steps 
and Siemens-wide standards.

The Managing Board’s expectations of our 
Key Account Managers are:

•	 Increase	market	penetration	through	
effective management of top executive 
relations through our Executive Rela-
tions Program.

•	 A	 customer-focused,	 cross-business	
collaboration.

•	 Proactively	creating	USP	fitting	to	cus-
tomer needs. 

•	 Increasing	 customer	 satisfaction	 and	
customer loyalty by taking care of the 
customer needs.

•	 Win	new	market	share	through	levera-
ging our global footprint, and promo-
ting the entire Siemens portfolio.

Platform of collaboration
To make the Siemens One approach work, 
it is crucial that the various entities and 
people within Siemens cooperate to sup-
port our customers. To accomplish this, 
Siemens One brings the Business Units and 
Divisions together in the Market Develop-
ment Boards and aligns these MDBs with 
the Regions. In the Regions, more than 50 
Siemens One Managers drive the Siemens 
One approach in their countries and clus-
ters.

Top+
Top+ is the company-wide Business Excel-
lence Program to improve Siemens› pro-
ducts, solutions, services and processes. It 
is the way we work at Siemens and how we 
drive our businesses to success. 

The top+ program comprises of four ele-
ments:

•	 Systematic Approach of defining 
goals, developing actions and control-

ling their implementation (goals, ac-
tions, consequences).

•	 top+ Focus Initiatives drives the most 
important themes for the future. Ex-
ample: Through the SMART Initiative 
we are enhancing our business in 
emerging markets.

•	 top+ Toolbox provides tools, methodo-
logies and best practices to improve 
Siemens› operational performance. 
Scenario-based benchmarking is one of 
the proven top+ tools.

•	 Best Practice Exchange Many success-
ful projects have been honored in the 
past few years with top+ awards. The 
top+ award not only serves as a tribute 
to excellent teams, but makes their 
projects known and available throug-
hout the company.

 34 Our Technology
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Generation

Fossil
 Gas Turbines & Power Plants (68 MW to 

340 MW)
 Steam Turbines & Power Plants  (150 

MW to 1,900 MW)
 Fuel Gasification Technology

Oil & Gas and Industrial Application
 Industrial Gas Turbines (< 50 MW)
 Industrial Steam Turbines (≤ 250 MW)
 Municipal and Industrial Power  
 TLT Fans for Mining, Buildings and 

Tunnel applications etc
 Components for Heat and Power 

Cogeneration Plants
 Power Supply Systems (Up-, Mid- & 

Downstream)
 Compressors (150-824,000 CFM)
 PGW Compressors for chemical & 

process industries
 Air Compressors

Energy Service

Services
 Installation and Commissioning of 

Power Plants
 Inspection of Turbines & Generators
 Modernization and Upgrades
 Rehabilitation programs for Turbines 

and Generators
 Operation and Maintenance Services
 Heat Treatment Services (upto 1200oC)

Renewable

 Small Hyrdo Power Plants
 Marine Current Turbine

Power Transmission & 
Distribution

High Voltage Substations
 Air Insulated Substations (AIS) from 

72.5 kV to 550 kV
 Highly Integrated  Substations (HIS) 

from 72.5 kV to 550 kV
 Gas Insulated  Substations (GIS) from 

72.5 kV to 550 kV
 Mobile Substations from 72.5 kV to 220 

kV
 HV Circuit Breakers
 HV Disconnectors
 HV Instrument Transformers
 HV Surge Arrestors
 Dead Tank Compact
 Coil Products
 HV Bushings

Locally Manufactured 
Transformers

 Power Transformers (60 MVA , 132kV)
 Distribution Transformers (36Kv upto 

10 MVA)
 Special Application Transformers
 Auto & Convertor Transformer

Imported products

 High Voltage Single and 3 Phase 
Voltage Regulators

 Dry Type Transformers (upto 36Kv 
to10MVA)

Our Business

Energy

Increased cost-effectiveness through 
holistic and integrated energy 
management

This is how energy is transformed from 
a cost factor into a success factor
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Our Business

Industry
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Drive Technologies

Motion Control Systems
 Motion Control from A to Z 
 CNC Controllers

	 •	SINUMERIK	840D	sl	–	premium	class	
CNC

 Up to 93 axes / spindles / 30 channels
 SIMOTION Motion Control Systems
 Frequency converters
 Servo and linear induction motors

Large Drives
 Electric Motors
 Converters

Mechanical Drives
 FLENDER Gear Units
 FLENDER Couplings
 Geared Motors
 Support and Service

Industry Automation

Portfolio
 Industrial Automation System 
 Control Components & System 

Engineering
 Enterprise Business Solutions
 MES

Solutions offered
 Complete Electrical & Process Control 

Systems
 Distributed Control Systems
 Customized MES- SIMATIC IT Solutions
 Telemetry and SCADA systems
 Management Information Systems 

(MIS)

 Process Instrumentation
 System Integration
 Balance of Plant
 Energy Management Solutions
 Factory and process automation 

systems & solutions
 Totally Integrated Automation (TIA)

Enterprise Business Solutions
 AP Center of Expertise (VAR)
 SAP Authorized Training Center (ATC)
 SAP Support Services
 Turnkey IT- Infrastructure Solutions

Customer Services

Product Lifecycle Services
 Up-gradation and Modernization 

Services
 Field and OnCall Services
 Testing and Commissioning Services
 Service Contracts
 Repair Services
 Retrofits Services
 Spare Parts Support

Value Services
 Condition Monitoring and Reliability 

Services
 Integral Plant Maintenance
 Regional Projects
 Trainings

Siemens answers help industries increase 
their competitiveness.

Is there a greater advantage than doing more with less?
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Imaging and Therapy

 Angiography Systems
 MRI Systems
 CT Scan Systems
 Radiation Oncology Solutions
 Radiation Oncology Solutions
 Molecular Imaging Solutions
 Refurbished Systems
 Syngo (Healthcare PACS & IT Solution) 
 Customer Development Solutions

Clinical Products

 Ultrasound Systems
 X- Ray Products Urology
 X- Ray Products Radiography & Fluoro
 X- Ray Products for Women’s Health
 X- Ray Products for Surgery & Mob  

X-Ray

Services

 Turnkey Project Execution
 Project Management
 Installation and Commissioning
 System Integration/Engineering Design
 After Sales Services Support
 Customer Training

Our Business

Healthcare

Siemens technology is helping to give 
families the answers they need, when they 
need them.

More healthcare stories with happier endings.
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The Smart Grid – Constant Energy 
in a World of Constant Change.

Energy meets Intelligence.

Our Business

Infrastructure & Citites



With its products, systems, and solutions, the 
Division makes sure that the electrical power 
transmitted via medium- and low-voltage 
networks reaches the end consumer safely and 
with low losses.

Siemens Low and Medium Voltage Division
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Smart Grid

BU Energy Automation:

Protection & Control Systems
•	 Protection	Relays,	Relay	panels,	Control	panels
Power Quality Systems
•	 Energy	Meters,	Power	Quality	Recorders,	Fault	Recorders
Substation Automation Systems
•	 Complete	solutions	for	industry	&	utilities	with	Smart	Remote,	

Terminal Units
Substation Communication Systems
•	 Complete	Solutions	with	Power	Line	Carriers,	Fiber	optic,	Micro	

wave & High Speed Digital Link (HSDL)
SCADA & LDC Turnkey Solutions
•	 Comprehensive	SCADA	solutions	with	Energy	Management	

Systems & Distribution Management Systems

BU Smart Grid Services:

Asset Services of PTD Products & Projects
•	 Maintenance,	Rehabilitation,	Upgrading,	Retrofitting,	Spare	

Parts Management, Transformer Life Management
Network Consulting
•	 Technical	due	diligence	and	technical	audits.	Network	Studies	

including load flows, short circuits, protection, Coordination, 
harmonics, dynamics etc. Successfully executed more than 50 
major projects in net        

      work analysis
Metering Services
•	 Automatic	Remote	Metering,	Pre-payment	&	AMR	Systems,	
•	 Tariff	Metering,	Installation	&	Management,	Billing
Software tool for Network Analysis
•	 Power	System	Simulator	product	suite	including	PSS®SINCAL,	

PSS®	E,	CTDim,	SIGRADE	etc.
Customer Support and Power Academy Training
•	 Support	in	all	T&D	problems	and	customized	training	programs	

for T&D sector

Low & Medium Voltage

Medium & Low Voltage Systems

•	 MV	Primary	and	Secondary	Switchgear:	Air	insulated	and	Gas	
insulated

•	 Medium	Voltage	Generator	Switchgear	
•	 MV	Outdoor	Switchgear
•	 LV	Distribution	Boards
•	 Busbar	Trunking	Systems

Complete power supply / power distribution 
Solutions

•	 E-House
•	 KIOSKs
•	 Substation
•	 Power	Supply	Solution	-	Complete	Solution	Business
•	 Grid	Coupling-SIPLINK	SIHARBOR
•	 Energy	Storage-	SIESTROAGE	(Li-Ion)
•	 Complete	 Turnkey	 Projects	 (Integrated	 Systems)	 including	

Supply, Installation, Testing, Commissioning and Electrical 
Work Services.

•	 Data	Centers

Medium & Low Voltage Products

•	 ACBs	/	MCCBs	/	MCBs
•	 Vacuum	Circuit	Breakers
•	 Vacuum	contactor	
•	 Vacuum	Interrupters
•	 Load	Break	Switches	/	Fuses
•	 Switches	&	Sockets	Outlets	(WA)
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The company has defined sustainability 
to mean acting responsibly on behalf of 
future generations to achieve economic, 
environmental and social progress.

Sustainability a guiding principle within Siemens
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Sustainability  
at Siemens 
Pakistan
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Sustainability at Siemens

A Global 
Perspective

Sustainability is a guiding principle within 
Siemens. The company has defined sustai-
nability to mean acting responsibly on be-
half of future generations to achieve eco-
nomic, environmental and social progress.  
We are aware of the associated high stan-
dards and the possibility of conflicting 
goals. Nevertheless,  the  aim  to  create  
sustainable  added  value  remains  a key 
element of our corporate strategy. We are 
convinced that sustainability, in this sense, 
is also a business opportunity, and one that 
is worth seizing.  One  Siemens,  our  frame-
work  for sustainable  value  creation  and  
capital-efficient  growth,  addresses this 
business opportunity with its three strate-
gic directions: Focus on innovation-driven 
growth markets, get closer to our custo-
mers and use the power of Siemens. The  
products  and  solutions  in  our  Environ-
mental  Portfolio and the innovation power 
of Siemens play a central role in contribu-
ting to environmental and climate protec-
tion while also  strengthening  our  stan-
ding  in  the  innovation driven growth 
markets that we focus on. An intense cus-
tomer focus and a competitive, globally 
balanced and localized network of suppliers 
supports us in getting closer to our custo-
mers all over the world.  Excellent emplo-
yees are one of Siemens’ vital strengths as 
they play a key role in our success and are 
the true power of Siemens.  Leveraging the 
power of Siemens also means strictly adhe-
ring to clear principles of integrity – so-
mething we also expect of our partners and 
suppliers.

Our  sustainability  efforts  are  based  on  
our  Business  Conduct Guidelines,  which  
provide  the  ethical  and  legal  framework 
within which we conduct our business ac-
tivities. They contain the basic principles 
and rules for our conduct internally and 
externally. Specific issues, such as those 
relating to the environment, are covered in 

more detailed regulations and guide-lines. 
The Business Conduct Guidelines are bin-
ding for all companies controlled by Sie-
mens. Furthermore,  we  believe  that  close  
collaboration  with  stake-holders  supports  
us  in  addressing  complex,  interlocking  
sustainability challenges and topics. Main-
taining an intensive dialogue with partners 
along the supply chain and with external 
stakeholder groups and organizations is 
important for us: Siemens is actively enga-
ged with leading global sustainability orga-
nizations, such as the World Business 
Council for Sustainable Development 
(WBCSD) and the World Resources Institute 
(WRI).  We  also  liaise  every  two  years  
with  a  broad  group  of stakeholders on 
key sustainability issues, and track their 
most significant  concerns  in  a  materiality  
matrix  that  helps  guide our sustainability 
program. In addition, we are committed to 
international standards and guidelines for 
sustainability. For example, we signed on 
to the United Nations Global Compact in 

2003 and became a signatory to the Global 
Compact’s CEO Water Mandate in 2008; 
since fiscal 2011, we are a member of the 
steering committee of the Global Compact’s 
“Caring for Climate” initiative.  We  regularly 
report on our sustainability performance 
using the guidelines (G3.0)  of  the  Global  
Reporting  Initiative  (GRI),  which  aim  at 
high  transparency  and  comparability  for  
corporate  sustainability reporting. Siemens  
has  been  part  of  the  widely  respected  
Dow  Jones Sustainability  Index  for  14  
consecutive  years.  Within  the  Index, we 
were ranked as Industry Leader in 2013 for  
Industrial Conglomerates  for  the  sixth  
time  in  a  row,  and as   Industry Group  
Leader  for  Capital  Goods  for  the  second  
time.  We  also earned  high  ratings  on  a  
number  of  other  indexes  and  rankings, 
including those created by the prestigious 
CDP (Carbon Disclosure Project). Siemens 
had one of the top scores in the world for 
the sixth time in a row

The company has defined sustainability to 
mean acting responsibly on behalf of 
future generations to achieve economic, 
environmental and social progress.
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Siemens drives an anti-corruption culture as a mandatory part of 
the company’s identity. It is necessary to further improve the 
economic and social wellbeing of people around the world. That’s 
why Siemens has launched a Collective Action approach to fight 
corruption. Collective Action is all about people and organizations 
coming together to create a fairer business environment. As part 
of a settlement with the World Bank Group in 2009, Siemens 
agreed to co-operate to change industry practices, clean up 
procurement practices, and engage in Collective Action with the 
World Bank Group to fight fraud and corruption. On December 9, 
2009, Siemens launched a global US$100 million Integrity 
Initiative which will support organizations and projects that fight 
corruption and fraud through Collective Action, education and 
training. The World Bank Group has audit rights over the use of 
these funds and veto rights over the selection of anti-corruption 
groups or programs receiving funds. Since December 2009, the 
Siemens Integrity Initiative has funded and supported numerous 
organizations and projects globally. Four of these projects are 
currently in operation in the Middle East. They help increase the 
understanding of ethical business conduct.

Siemens’ 
commitment to 
integrity
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Sustainability  
at Siemens Pakistan
We adhere to the global Siemens view of sustainability by living our values, preserving the 
environment and by leading by example in the areas of corporate citizenship. Our landmark 
projects in the country are living proof of our commitment to sustainability. Siemens over the 
years has been in the forefront of disaster relief in the country. From the earthquake in 2005 
to the floods in 2010 and 2011 we always rose to the occasion providing immediate help and 
long term sustainable projects like “Light for life” in earthquake devastated area of Azad Kash-
mir and “Water for everyone” that continues to provide clean drinking water to over 8,000 
flood affected people every day in villages in the province of Sindh. The filtration plants ins-
talled have the capacity to provide of 10,000 liters per day and have a life of 10 years. They 
require very little maintenance.

From the earthquake in 2005 to the floods 
in 2010 and 2011 we always rose to the 
occasion

Sustainability - Social Responsibility
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Study Tour and Visits

Study tours and visits to Siemens Industrial Complex are conducted regularly throughout the 
year for students across Pakistan, professionals in the industry, officials of public utilities and 
technical branches of the armed forces of Pakistan and their affiliated institutes. For the 
Engineering Universities, Technical Institutions and technical branches of the armed forces 
of Pakistan this visit forms part of their curriculum.

Such visits not only help to introduce Siemens to students who will be 
future leaders and stake holders in the engineering industry but also 
allow the visitors to experience the practical side of their academic 
studies and prepare them for their future roles.

 

Siemens Pakistan won 10th Annual Environment Ex-
cellence Award 2013. The Award Distribution Cerem-
ony was held at Marriot Hotel, Karachi. Dr. Mirza 
Ikhtiar Baig, Former Advisor of Prime Minister for 
Textile was the chief guest.

Siemens wins 
Environment Excellence 
award
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Light for Life

Siemens Pakistan is proud of the fact that 
its projects have proved sustainable over 
the years and most of them are still serving 
the community and establishing the fact 
that our claims of sustainability can stand 
the test of time. 

SUSTAINABLE PROJECTS ONGOING FOR SEVERAL YEARS.

The 2005 earthquake in northern areas of Pakistan   was a major 
earthquake centered in the Pakistan administered Kashmir near 
the city of Muzaffarabad It registered a moment magnitude of 7.6 
making it similar in size to the 1906 San Francisco earthquake, 
official death toll was 75,000. 

Siemens Pakistan with the help of Siemens AG and countries from 
Asia Pacific and Australia helped the earthquake victims in several 
ways including repairing telecommunication lines, providing 
equipment and relief goods etc. The main project undertaken was 
named “Light for Life” and it provided solar energy to two villages 
Sharda Maidan a village of 40 families and a child and mother 
centre and a rural health centre and village Butnara a village of 150 
houses. The rural health centre and the mother and child centre 
were specially benefitted by this project as many of their equip-
ments could not be used in absence of electricity. 
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Chair at LUMS
In 2008 Siemens donated a sum of One Million Euro for the esta-
blishment of a chair at LUMS ( Lahore University of Management 
Sciences) School of Science and Engineering. The Project Director 
Mr. Khurram Afridi wrote a letter of thanks to Siemens and stated 
that the donation enables LUMS to create a completely new model 
for Science and Engineering in Pakistan. A world class research 
school that teaches our students tomorrow‘s science. He said LUMS 
SSE will aim to create opportunity and Siemens role in this is cru-
cial. It enables LUMS to reach out to students from all Socio Eco-
nomic levels and provides them access to a quality education till 
now reserved for a privileged few.

Project Pakistan
Under project Pakistan latest technology equipment labs were 
established in two leading Eng. Universities of Pakistan. 

These facilities without any doubt laid a foundation into making 
the laboratories in these universities the best equipped yet in Pa-
kistan. The technology included latest versions of:

•	 Programmable	Logic	Controllers

•	 Field	Instrumentation	

•	 Human	Machine	Interface	devices

This technology provided students the opportunity to gain hands 
on experience in areas such as: factory automation; process con-
trol; and energy efficiency; and help them seek solutions in these 
important areas vital to the future of the country.

Workshop for 
Disabled
Siemens donated a full workshop for disabled people where con-
version of ordinary motorcycles into vehicles took place that could 
be used with ease by the handicapped by installing such gadgets 
as hand held brakes, clutches and accelerators. Also donated was 
a diesel generating set for power supply and a car to facilitate 
transport for the disabled
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Health, Safety & Environment

Siemens Pakistan plays an integral part in 
the development and progress of the 
national economy with a strong sense of 
responsibility to society and the 
environment. As a good corporate citizen 
and conscious of our social and 
environmental responsibilities, we function 
in a manner that protects and preserves the 
environment for our future generations, 
ensures the health & safety of our 
stakeholders and exerts a positive influence 
in the community. 

We regard environmental and social 
aspects cardinal to sustainable economic 
development. We believe in the efficient 
use of natural resources and reduction and 
prevention of pollution. We also assess 
health, safety and environmental aspects 
and impacts in the early stages of product 
and process development. With these 
commitments, we at Siemens Pakistan:

•	 Place	 our	 continuous	 and	 concerted	
efforts towards minimizing the impacts 
on the environment and use of energy 
and natural resources.

•	 Control,	 monitor	 and	 minimize	 the	
generation of waste, emissions to air, 
water and land; and are committed to 
comply with all applicable legal 
requirements.

•	 Ensure	 adequate	 controls	 to	 prevent	
any adverse effect on the environment 
and to reduce or       eliminate health 
and safety hazards.

•	 Practice	efficient	energy	management	
with resource conservation and 
promote recycling, reuse, reduction 
and replacement wherever possible.

•	 Promote	awareness,	responsibility	and	
commitment for the conservation of 
the global environment as well as 
health, safety and protection amongst 
all levels of employees. 

•	 Educate	the	employees	on	the	issues	of	
health, safety and environment.
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Efforts to Ensure 
Quality at Siemens
Siemens Pakistan designs, develops, manufactures, markets and 
provides services of a wide range of technologically advanced 
electrical and electronic products and systems, including construc-
tion projects and software which benefit business, industry and 
society. 

Quality is an integral part of our mission and strategy. The custo-
mer is a focal point in our thinking and action. We, therefore, align 
ourselves to the needs and expectations of the customers in a 
manner that result in their satisfaction, our business profitability 
and stakeholders benefit.

We continuously endeavor to maintain our reputation and Siemens 
brand name as a guarantee of quality, reliability and dependability.

We commit ourselves to comply with all applicable statutory and 
regulatory requirements and endorse our commitment as respon-
sible corporate citizen.

Our quality management system ensures the adherence of the 
company quality policy in our day to day and strategic activities at 
all functional levels.  Our commitment to society is evident even 
in our quality policy which provides working guidelines for all 
management and operational procedures.
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The Environmental 
Portfolio of Siemens

Environmental Portfolio revenue
(in billions of €)1)

Environmental Portfolio CO2 abatement 
(in millions of metric tons)1) 

32.3

377

FY 2012

FY 2012

FY 2013

FY 2013

FY 2011

FY 2011

32.7

333

29.7

259

Energy efficiency

Renewable energies

Environmental technologies

1

2

3
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Siemens again leader 
in both Industry Group 
& Industry

Siemens’ ranking in the Dow Jones 
Sustainability Index

FY 2013FY 2012FY 2011FY 2010FY 2009FY 2008

Ranking in Social Dimension Ranking in Corporate Citizenship

FY 2012 FY 2013FY 2010

931)75 82 87 90 92

1002)842) 1002) 1002)882)87 86 88

FY 2011FY 2012 FY 2013FY 2010 FY 2011
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Thinking in the long term

Siemens joins GPATI
One of the major sustainability initiatives 
we undertook was to become part of GPATI.

This Germany-Pakistan Training Initiative is 
a special skill development program 
initiated by the German Consulate General 
in Karachi to equip young men and women 
of Pakistan with employable and demand-
driven skills. 

GPATI is modeled on the German Dual 
Training System, which is a globally 
accepted vocational training approach and 
is being employed successfully in Germany 
since long. 

Dual Training System engages youth in a 
skilled form of occupational activity 
through an extensive training program in a 
changing working environment. It’s a 
combination of on job training at 
companies/industries and learning at 
vocational institutes.

This unique model system of skill 
development has been modified as per 
Pakistan’s local environment and needs, 
making it a cooperative training form to 
benefit both the employers and workers. 

Through this approach, employers will have 
a skilled workforce readily available to them 
to place in the areas of need. The 
prospective employees, on the other hand, 
will gain the necessary occupational 
experience.

Siemens has merged its own apprenticeship 
scheme which has been running for more 
than two decades with GPATI and is 
presently the largest contributor of 
apprentices for this scheme. 

Siemens association with GPATI underscores 
the importance Siemens places in 
development of youth in country and in 
their training to allow them to play a 

positive role in society. At Siemens we are 
thinking in the long term about the future 
of youth in the country.

56
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Statement of Compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance

This statement is being presented to comply with the Code of Corporate Governance (Code) contained in Regulation No. 35 of 
Chapter XI of Listing Regulations of stock exchanges of Pakistan for the purpose of establishing a framework of good gover-
nance, whereby a listed company is managed in compliance with the best practices of corporate governance.

The Company has applied the principles contained in the Code in the following manner:

1. The Company encourages representation of independent non-executive directors and directors representing minority inte-
rests on its board of directors. As at September 30, 2013 the board includes:

NamesCategory

Independent director Mr. Naeemuddin Khan

Non-executive directors Mr. Bernhard Niessing (Chairman)
Mr. Manzoor Ahmed 
Mr. Stefan Halberstadt
Mr. Helmut Steidle
Dr. Sebastian Brachert 
Mr. Dietmar Siersdorfer

Executive director Mr. Guenter Zwickl

2. None of the directors is serving as a director on more than seven listed companies, including this Company, except for Mr. 
Manzoor Ahmed who has been granted relaxation by SECP. 

3. All the resident directors of the Company are registered as taxpayers and none of them has defaulted in payment of any lo-
an to a banking Company, a DFI or an NBFI or, being a member of a stock exchange, has been declared as a defaulter by that 
stock exchange. 

4. One casual vacancy occurred in the Board on June 14, 2013 which was filled up by the directors on June 24, 2013 i.e. within 
90 days of occurrence. 

5. The Company has prepared a Code of Conduct called “Business Conduct Guidelines” and has ensured that appropriate steps 
have been taken to disseminate it throughout the Company along with its supporting policies and procedures.

6. The Board has developed a vision and mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant policies of the Compa-
ny. A complete record of particulars of significant policies along with the dates on which they were approved or amended 
has been maintained. 

7. All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on material transactions, including appointment and 
determination of remuneration and terms and conditions of employment of the CEO and non-executive directors have be-
en taken by the Board of Directors and Shareholders respectively. 

8. The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a director elected by Board for this 
purpose. The Board met at least once in every quarter. Written notices of the Board meetings, along with the agenda and 
working papers, were circulated at least seven days before the meetings, except for Board Meeting held on September 18, 
2013, against which a waiver was provided by the Board. The minutes of the meetings were appropriately recorded and cir-
culated.

9. The Company arranges orientation course for its directors as and when needed to apprise them of their duties and respon-
sibilities. One of the directors has already acquired certification under directors training programme conducted by Pakistan 
Institute of Corporate Governance and more will be attending the training programme during the year 2014.
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10. The Board has approved the appointment of Chief Financial Officer including his remuneration and terms and conditions of 
employment. No new appointment of Company Secretary and Head of Internal Audit was made during the year. 

11. The Directors‘ Report has been prepared in compliance with the requirements of the Code and fully describes the salient 
matters required to be disclosed.

12. The financial statements of the Company were duly endorsed by CEO and CFO before approval of the Board.

13. The directors, CEO and executives do not hold any interest in the shares of the Company other than that disclosed in the 
pattern of shareholding.

14. The Company has complied with all the corporate and financial reporting requirements of the Code.

15. The Board has formed an audit committee. It comprises of four members, all of whom are non-executive directors and the 
chairman of committee is an independent director.

16. The meetings of the audit committee were held at least once every quarter prior to the approval of interim and final results 
of the Company and as required by the Code. The Terms of Reference of the Committee have been formed and advised to 
the Committee for compliance.

17. The Board has formed a Human Resource & Remuneration Committee. It comprises of four members, of whom three are 
non-executive directors including the Chairman, who is an independent non-executive director.

18. The Board has outsourced the internal audit function to Corporate Finance Audit (CF A) department of Siemens AG who are 
considered suitably qualified and experienced for the purpose and are conversant with the policies and procedures of the 
Company.

19. The statutory auditors of the Company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating under the quality 
control review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP), that they or any of the partners of the 
firm, their spouses and minor children do not hold shares of the Company and that the firm and all its partners are in com-
pliance with International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by the ICAP.

20. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other services except in ac-
cordance with the listing regulations and the auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this re-
gard.

21. The ‚closed period‘, prior to the announcement of interim and final results, and business decisions which may materially 
affect the market price of Company‘s securities, was determined and intimated to the directors, employees and Stock Ex-
changes.

22. Material / price sensitive information has been disseminated amongst all the market participants at once through the Stock 
Exchanges.

23. We confirm that all other material principles enshrined in the Code have been complied with.

Bernhard Niessing      Guenter Zwickl
Chairman       Chief Executive Officer

Munich, Germany
December 13, 2013
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Siemens (Pakistan) Engineering Company Limited
Balance Sheet
As at September 30, 2013

2013 2012
Note (Rupees in ‘000)

Equity and liabilities

Share capital and reserves 
Share capital
 - Authorised
     20,000,000 (2012: 20,000,000) Ordinary shares of Rs 10 each 200,000 200,000

 - Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up 4 82,470 82,470

Reserves
Capital 5 624,192 624,192
Revenue 5 3,758,042 5,813,722

4,382,234 6,437,914

4,464,704 6,520,384
Non-current liabilities
Retention money 33,553 34,629
Other non-current liabilities 18,730 26,102

52,283 60,731
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 6 6,832,835 6,900,970
Provisions 7 1,585,770 1,040,776
Short-term borrowings 8 2,618,391 2,796,443
Taxation - net 9 1,232,188 1,288,423

12,269,184 12,026,612

12,321,467 12,087,343
Contingencies and commitments 10

Total equity and liabilities 16,786,171 18,607,727

Assets

Non-current assets
Fixed assets
     Property, plant and equipment 11 1,383,047 1,544,021
     Intangible assets 12 16,376 781

1,399,423 1,544,802
Long-term loans and trade receivables 14 398,201 854,276
Long-term deposits and prepayments 9,304 5,272
Deferred tax asset 15 1,555,669 1,436,346

3,362,597 3,840,696
Current assets
Inventories 16 2,085,208 2,985,409
Trade receivables 17 6,099,401 6,681,761
Due against construction work in progress 18 3,999,116 3,282,899
Loans and advances 19 85,037 89,769
Deposits and short-term prepayments 20 147,668 137,262
Other receivables 21 343,441 291,022
Cash and bank balances 22 663,703 1,298,909

13,423,574 14,767,031

Total assets 16,786,171 18,607,727

The annexed notes 1 to 47 form an integral part of these financial statements.

 Guenter Zwickl Naeemuddin Khan 
 Chief Executive  Director



62  10 Information for Stakeholders 2 Our Profile  12 Our Company

Siemens (Pakistan) Engineering Company Limited
Profit and Loss Account
For the year ended September 30, 2013

2013   2012

Note  Continuing   Discontinued  Company as  Continuing   Discontinued  Company as 

 operations  operations  a whole  operations  operations  a whole 

-------------------------------------------------(Rupees in '000)-------------------------------------------------

Net sales and services 23  12,209,297  829,897  13,039,194  12,122,155  1,711,919  13,834,074 

    Cost of sales and services 24  (11,946,209)  (765,328)  (12,711,537)  (10,944,740)  (1,974,125)  (12,918,865)

Gross profit / (loss)  263,088  64,569  327,657  1,177,415  (262,206)  915,209 

    Marketing and selling expenses 25  (663,384)  (110,052)  (773,436)  (557,722)  (144,560)  (702,282)

    General administrative expenses 26  (188,353)  (14,136)  (202,489)  (267,080)  (29,918)  (296,998)

 (851,737)  (124,188)  (975,925)  (824,802)  (174,478)  (999,280)

    Other operating income / (loss) 27  87,143  (1,554)  85,589  50,660  346  51,006 

    Other operating expenses 27  3,093  –  3,093  10,705  –  10,705 

    Net other operating income  90,236  (1,554)  88,682  61,365  346  61,711 

Operating (loss) / profit  (498,413)  (61,173)  (559,586)  413,978  (436,338)  (22,360)

    Financial income 28  13,106 –    13,106  92,345 –    92,345 

    Financial expenses 28  (272,851)  (1,528)  (274,379)  (132,521)  (1,078)  (133,599)

    Net finance costs  (259,745)  (1,528)  (261,273)  (40,176)  (1,078)  (41,254)

(Loss) / profit before tax (758,158) (62,701) (820,859)  373,802  (437,416)  (63,614)

    Income tax 29  (144,222)  (9,862)  (154,084)  51,227  7,234  58,461 

Net (loss) / profit for the year  (902,380)  (72,563)  (974,943)  425,029  (430,182)  (5,153)

Basic and diluted (loss) / earnings per share (Rupees) 31 (109.42) (8.80) (118.22)  51.54  (52.16)  (0.62)

The annexed notes 1 to 47 form an integral part of these financial statements.

 Guenter Zwickl Naeemuddin Khan 
 Chief Executive  Director
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Siemens (Pakistan) Engineering Company Limited
Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended September 30, 2013

2013 2012

(Rupees in ‘000)

Net loss for the year  (974,943)  (5,153)

Other comprehensive loss for the year not to be reclassified to  

      profit and loss in subsequent period:

      Recognition of actuarial losses  (97,452)  (41,794)

      Deferred tax on actuarial losses  6,359  15,100 

 (91,093)  (26,694)

Total comprehensive loss for the year  (1,066,036)  (31,847)

The annexed notes 1 to 47 form an integral part of these financial statements.

 Guenter Zwickl Naeemuddin Khan 
 Chief Executive  Director
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 Guenter Zwickl Naeemuddin Khan 
 Chief Executive  Director

2013 2012

Note (Rupees in ‘000)
Cash flows from operating activities

Cash generated from operations 32  1,226,589  2,438,580 

Payment to Gratuity Fund  (105,588)  (89,296)

Financial expenses paid  (245,472)  (136,764)

Income tax paid  (323,283)  (403,677)

Payment to Workers' Profits Participation Fund –  (8,888)

Net cash generated from operating activities  552,246  1,799,955 

Cash flows from investing activities

Capital expenditure  (68,246)  (101,857)

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment  39,685  29,844 

Financial income received  8,805  86,253 

Net cash (used in) / generated from investing activities  (19,756)  14,240 

Cash flows from financing activities

Dividends paid  (989,644)  (82,470)

Short-term loans obtained  1,750,000 –

Net cash generated from / (used in) financing activities  760,356  (82,470)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents  1,292,846  1,731,725 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year  (1,497,534)  (3,229,259)

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 33  (204,688)  (1,497,534)

The annexed notes 1 to 47 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Siemens (Pakistan) Engineering Company Limited
Cash Flow Statement
For the year ended September 30, 2013
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Siemens (Pakistan) Engineering Company Limited
Statement of Changes in Equity 
For the year ended September 30, 2013

                                                                                Issued, 
subscribed
and paid-

up
share 

capital

Capital reserves Revenue reserves

TotalShare
premium

 

Capital
repurchase

reserve 
account

 Other  
capital

 reserve 

General
 reserves 

Actuarial 
losses

Accumulated
profit / (loss)

-----------------------------------------------------------------(Rupees in ‚000)-----------------------------------------------------------------

Balance as at September 30, 2011  82,470  619,325  567  4,300  4,523,026  (144,119)  1,549,132  6,634,701 

Final dividend @ Rs 10 per Ordinary share of Rs 10 

    each for the year ended September 30, 2011 –  –  –  –  –  –  (82,470)  (82,470)

Net loss for the year ended September 30, 2012 –  –  –  –  –  –  (5,153)  (5,153)

Other comprehensive loss for the year  –  –  –  –  –  (26,694)  –  (26,694)

Total comprehensive loss for the year  –  –  –  –  –  (26,694)  (5,153)  (31,847)

Balance as at September 30, 2012  82,470  619,325  567  4,300  4,523,026  (170,813)  1,461,509  6,520,384 

Final dividend @ Rs 120 per Ordinary share of Rs 10 

    each for the year ended September 30, 2012  –  –  –  –  –  –  (989,644)  (989,644)

Net loss for the year ended September 30, 2013  –  –  –  –  –  –  (974,943)  (974,943)

Other comprehensive loss for the year  –  –  –  –  –  (91,093)  –  (91,093)

Total comprehensive loss for the year  –  –  –  –  –  (91,093)  (974,943)  (1,066,036)

Balance as at September 30, 2013  82,470  619,325  567  4,300  4,523,026  (261,906)  (503,078)  4,464,704 

The annexed notes 1 to 47 form an integral part of these financial statements.

 Guenter Zwickl Naeemuddin Khan 
 Chief Executive  Director
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Siemens (Pakistan) Engineering Company Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended September 30, 2013

1. LEGAL STATUS AND OPERATIONS

 Siemens (Pakistan) Engineering Company Limited (the Company) was incorporated in Pakistan in the year 1953. The Company is a 
public limited company and its shares are quoted on the Karachi, Islamabad and Lahore Stock Exchanges. The Company is principally 
engaged in the execution of projects under contracts and in manufacturing, sale and installation of electronic and electrical capital 
goods. The Company‘s registered office is situated at B-72, Estate Avenue, S.I.T.E., Karachi.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

2.1 Statement of compliance

 These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan. Approved 
accounting standards comprise of such International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting 
Standards Board (IASB) and Islamic Financial Accounting Standards (IFAS) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan 
(ICAP), as are notified under the Companies Ordinance, 1984, provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Ordinance, 
1984. In case requirements differ, the provisions or directives of the Companies Ordinance, 1984 shall prevail.

2.2 Basis of measurement

 These financial statements have been prepared under the ‚historical cost‘ convention except for derivative financial instruments which 
are valued at fair value.

2.3 Functional and presentation currency

 These financial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupees (Rs) which is the functional currency of the Company and figures are 
rounded off to the nearest thousand of rupees unless otherwise specified.

2.4 Use of estimates and judgements

 The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards requires management to make judgements, 
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income 
and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

 Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the 
period in which the estimate is revised and in any future periods affected.

 In preparing these financial statements, the significant judgements made by the management in applying accounting policies include:

  - Warranty obligations (note 3.2)
  - Provision for liquidated damages (note 3.2) 
  - Method of depreciation, residual values of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (note 3.4 and 3.5)
  - Impairment on property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (note 3.4 and 3.5)
  - Provisions against inventories, doubtful receivables and construction work in progress (notes 3.9, 3.10 and 3.11 respectively)
  - Actuarial assumptions for the gratuity scheme and provision thereagainst (note 6.1)
  - Provision for taxation and deferred taxation (note 3.7)
  - Cost of completion of contracts in progress and their results (note 35)
  - Expected outcome of litigations involving the Company.

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

 The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below: 

3.1 Employees‘ retirement benefits

 The Company‘s retirement benefit plans comprise of a defined benefit plan and a defined contribution plan.

3.1.1 Defined Benefit Plan

 The Company operates a funded gratuity scheme for all its regular permanent employees except expatriates. Provisions are made in 
the financial statements to cover obligations on the basis of actuarial valuation carried out annually under the Projected Unit Credit 
method. Actuarial gains / losses are recognised directly to equity through statement of Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) and are 
not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent period. 

3.1.2 Defined Contribution Plan

 The Company also operates a provident fund scheme for all its regular permanent employees except expatriates. Equal monthly 
contributions are made to the fund, both by the Company and the employees at the rate of 10 percent of the aggregate of basic salary 
and cost of living allowance wherever applicable. 
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3.2 Provisions

 A provision is recognised in the balance sheet when the Company has legal or constructive obligation as a result of past event and it 
is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate 
can be made of the amount of obligation. 

 Various contracts entered into by the Company include provisions whereby liquidated damages may be imposed in case of delay in 
completion of the sales or construction contracts. These damages are generally levied in case the delay is considered to be on account 
of factors under Company’s control. The Company makes provision for these liquidated damages based on an analysis of various factors 
resulting in delays / estimated delays. The imposition of actual liquidated damages is subject to negotiations and, in certain cases, 
based on fresh analysis of the factors affecting the delay, these damages may not be imposed or may be higher than the amount 
provided.

 The Company accounts for its warranty obligations when the underlying products or services are sold or rendered. The provision is 
based on historical warranty data and a weighting of all possible outcomes against their associated probabilities.

3.3 Borrowing costs

 Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying capital asset under construction are 
capitalised and added to the project cost until such time the assets are substantially ready for their intended use, i.e., when they are 
capable of commercial production. All other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the profit and loss in the period in which 
they are incurred.

3.4 Property, plant and equipment

 Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any except for 
capital work in progress which are stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost in relation to self manufactured 
assets includes direct cost of materials, labour and applicable manufacturing overheads. If the cost of certain components of an item 
of property, plant and equipment are significant in relation to the total cost of the item, they are accounted for and depreciated 
separately. 

 Capital work in progress are transferred to the respective items of property, plant and equipment on becoming available for intended 
use.

 Depreciation is charged to profit and loss account applying the straight line method whereby the cost of an asset is written off over 
its estimated useful life. Depreciation on additions is charged from the month in which the asset is available for use and on disposals 
upto the month of deletion. The residual value, depreciation method and the useful lives of each part of property, plant and equipment 
that is significant in relation to the total cost of the asset are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting date.

 Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership is retained by the Muj‘ir (lessor) and Ijarah agreement has 
been entered into are classified as Ijarah. Payments made under Ijarah are charged to profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the 
period of Ijarah.

3.5 Intangible assets

 Intangible assets having definite useful lives are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if 
any. Intangible assets are amortised using the straight line method over the estimated useful lives. 

3.6 Impairment 

3.6.1 Financial assets

 Financial assets are assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any objective evidence of impairment, if any. A 
financial asset is considered to be impaired if objective evidence indicates that one or more events have had a negative effect of the 
estimated future cash flows of that asset.

3.6.2 Non-Financial assets

 The carrying values of non-financial assets other than inventories and deferred tax assets are assessed at each reporting date to 
determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indications exist, then the recoverable amount is estimated. An 
impairment loss is recognised, as an expense in the profit and loss account, for the amount by which an asset‘s carrying amount 
exceeds its recoverable amount. 
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3.7 Taxation

3.7.1 Current

 Provision for current taxation is based on taxability of certain income streams of the Company under Normal Tax Regime after taking 
into account tax credits and tax rebates available, if any and the remaining income streams under Final Tax Regime at the applicable 
tax rates. The charge for current tax includes adjustments to charge for prior years, if any. The tax charge as calculated above is 
compared with turnover tax under Section 113 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 and whichever is higher is provided in the financial 
statements.

3.7.2 Deferred

 Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet liability method, providing for temporary differences between the carrying amounts 
of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. The amount of deferred tax 
provided is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based 
on tax rates and the tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

 Deferred tax liability is recognised for all taxable temporary differences. A deferred tax asset is recognised only when it is probable 
that future taxable profits will be available against which the deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are 
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised. Deferred tax relating to items recognised 
in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) / Equity is recognised directly in OCI / Equity.

3.8 Long-term receivables

 Long-term loans and trade receivables are measured at amortised cost less provision for any uncollectible amounts and are discounted 
to their present values. 

3.9 Inventories

 Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost of finished goods, both manufactured and purchased, raw 
material and components is determined on weighted average basis. The cost of work-in-process and finished goods includes direct 
materials, labour and applicable production overheads.

 Net realisable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less estimated cost of completion and 
estimated costs necessarily to be incurred to make the sale.

3.10 Trade receivables

 Trade receivables are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost less provision for any uncollectible 
amounts. 

3.11 Due against construction work in progress

 Due against construction work in progress represents the gross unbilled amount expected to be collected from customers for contract 
work performed to date. It is measured at cost plus profit recognised to date less progress billing and recognised losses and any related 
provision thereagainst. Cost includes all expenditures related directly to specific projects and an allocation of fixed and variable 
overheads incurred.

3.12 Cash and cash equivalents

 Cash and cash equivalents are stated at cost and comprise of cash in hand, deposits held with banks and highly liquid investments 
with less than three months maturity from the date of acquisition. Running finance facilities availed by the Company, which are 
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Company‘s cash management are considered as part of cash and cash equivalents 
for the purpose of the statement of cash flows.

3.13 Segment reporting

 Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the management. Management 
monitors the operating results of its business segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about resource allocation and 
performance assessment.

 Segment results, assets and liabilities include items directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can be allocated on a 
reasonable basis. Unallocated items comprise mainly investments and related revenue, loans and borrowings and related expenses, 
corporate assets, cash and bank balances and tax assets and liabilities.

 Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during the period to acquire property, plant and equipment, and intangible 
assets other than goodwill.
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3.14 Foreign currencies

 Foreign currency transactions are translated into Pak Rupees at exchange rates prevailing on the date of transaction. All monetary 
assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are re translated at the rates of exchange prevailing at the balance sheet date. Exchange 
gains and losses are included in the profit and loss account. Derivative financial instruments are translated at the fair market values 
as at the balance sheet date.

3.15 Revenue recognition

 Revenue from sale of goods are recognised when significant risks and rewards of ownership are transferred to the buyer. Service 
revenue is recognised over the contractual period or as and when services are rendered to customers. Commission income is recognised 
on receipt / acknowledged basis. Financial income is recognised as it accrues, using the effective mark-up rates.

 Contract revenue and contract costs relating to long-term construction contracts are recognised as revenue and expenses respectively 
by reference to stage of completion of contract activity at the balance sheet date. Stage of completion of a contract is determined by 
applying ‘cost-to-cost method’ by reference to the proportion that contract cost incurred to date bears to the total estimated contract 
cost. Contract revenue on construction contracts valuing less than Rs 10 million and / or duration upto six months is recognised using 
completed contract method. When it is probable that contract costs will exceed total contract revenue, the expected loss is recognised 
as an expense immediately. When the outcome of a construction contract cannot be estimated reliably, revenue is recognised only to 
the extent of contract costs incurred that it is probable will be recoverable.

 Variations in contract work, claims and incentive payments are included in contract revenue to the extent that they have agreed with 
the customer and are capable of being measured reliably.

3.16 Financial assets and liabilities

 All financial assets and liabilities are initially measured at cost, which is the fair value of the consideration given or received as 
appropriate. These financial assets and liabilities are subsequently measured at fair value or amortised cost as the case may be. The 
Company derecognises the financial assets and financial liabilities when it ceases to be a party to contractual provisions of such 
instruments.

3.17 Derivative financial instruments

 The Company uses derivative financial instruments to hedge its exposure to foreign exchange arising from operational activities. Any 
gain or loss from re-measuring the hedging instrument at fair value is recognised in the profit and loss account.

3.18 Dividends

 Dividend is recognised as a liability in the period in which it is declared. 

3.19 Share based payment transactions

 The fair value of the amount payable in cash to employees in respect of Stock Awards is recognised as an expense, with a corresponding 
increase in liabilities, over the period that the employees become entitled to payment. The liability is remeasured at each reporting 
date and at settlement date. Any changes in the fair value of the liability are recognised as salaries, wages and employee welfare 
expense in the profit and loss account.

3.20 Discontinued operations

 A discontinued operation is a component of the Company‘s business that has been discontinued or disposed off or is held-for-sale. 
Classification as a discontinued operation occurs on disposal or when the operation meets the criteria to be classified as held for sale, 
if earlier. When an operation is classified as a discontinued operation, the comparative profit and loss account is restated as if the 
operation had been discontinued from the start of the comparative period.

3.21 Adoption of standards, amendments and interpretations effective during the year
      
 The following standards and interpretations became effective for the current financial year but are either not relevant or do not have 

any effect on the Company‘s financial statements:

 - IAS 12, (Amendments) ‚Income Taxes‘; and
 - IAS 1, (Amendments) ‚Presentation of Financial Statements‘.
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3.22 Standards, interpretations and amendments to approved accounting standards that are not yet effective

 The following revised standards, amendments and interpretations with respect to the approved accounting standards as applicable 
in Pakistan would be effective from the dates mentioned below against the respective standards or interpretations:

    Effective date 
    (annual periods 
    beginning 
 Standard or Interpretation on or after)

 IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures (Amendments) Amendments enhancing  
        disclosures about offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities  January 01, 2013
 IAS 19 Employee Benefits - (Amendment) January 01, 2013
 IAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities (Amendment) January 01, 2014
 IFRIC 20 Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface Mine January 01, 2014
 IFRIC 21 Levies January 01, 2014

 In addition to the above amendments, improvements to various accounting standards have also been issued by the IASB. Such 
improvements are generally effective for accounting periods beginning on or after January 01, 2013. The Company expects that the 
adoption of the above revisions, amendments, interpretations and improvements of the standards will not have any material impact 
on the Company‘s financial statements in the period of initial application. The Company had early adopted the changes in IAS-19‚ 
Employee Benefits‘ in the financial statements for the year ended September 30, 2011. 

 Further, the following new standards have been issued by IASB which are yet to be notified by the Securities and Exchange Commission 
of Pakistan (SECP) for the purpose of applicability in Pakistan. 

    IASB 
    Effective date 
    (annual periods
    beginning
 Standard  on or after)

 IFRS 9 Financial Instruments January 01, 2015
 IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements January 01, 2013
 IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements January 01, 2013
 IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities January 01, 2013
 IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement January 01, 2013

 The Company expects that above new standards will not have any impact on the Company‘s financial statements in the period of initial 
application. 

4. ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND FULLY PAID-UP SHARE CAPITAL 

2013 2012 2013 2012

(Rupees in ‘000) (Rupees in ‘000)

 6,217,780  6,217,780 Issued for cash  62,178  62,178 

 81,700  81,700 Issued for consideration other than cash  817  817 

 1,526,800   1,526,800 Issued as bonus shares  15,268  15,268 

 (56,683)  (56,683) Shares bought back  (567)  (567)

 477,440  477,440 Issued under a scheme of amalgamation  4,774  4,774 

 8,247,037  8,247,037  82,470  82,470

4.1 Siemens Aktiengesellschaft (Siemens AG, the parent company), held 5,451,120 Ordinary shares (2012: 5,451,120 Ordinary shares) of 
Rs 10 each of the Company as at September 30, 2013.      
 

4.2 Dividends and other appropriations

 The Board of Directors have, in their meeting held on December 13, 2013 proposed a final cash dividend of Rs 20 per Ordinary share of 
Rs 10 each (2012: Rs 120 per share), amounting to Rs 164.941 million (2012: Rs 989.644 million). 
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5. RESERVES 2013 2012

Note (Rupees in ‘000)

Capital 
Share premium 5.1  619,325  619,325 

Capital repurchase reserve account 5.2  567  567 

Other capital reserve  4,300  4,300 

 624,192  624,192 

Revenue
General reserves  4,523,026  4,523,026 

Actuarial losses - net of deferred taxes  (261,906)  (170,813)

Accumulated (loss) / profit  (503,078)  1,461,509 

 3,758,042  5,813,722 

5.1 This represents premium of Rs 50 per share on the issue of 186,340 Ordinary shares of Rs 10 each and Rs 70 per share on the issue of 
223,608 Ordinary shares of Rs 10 each during the years ended September 30, 1988 and 1990, respectively, and premium of Rs 1,277 per 
share on the issue of 477,440 Ordinary shares of Rs 10 each under the scheme of amalgamation during the year ended September 30, 
2007. This amount was reduced by Rs 15.334 million on account of 56,683 Ordinary shares of Rs 10 each bought back by the Company 
during the year ended September 30, 2003.

5.2 This represents the amount by which the share capital of the Company was reduced on the buy back of 56,683 Ordinary shares of Rs 
10 each and transferred from the distributable profits of the Company to ‚capital repurchase reserve account‘ during the year ended 
September 30, 2003. This reserve was created to comply with the requirements of sub-section 10 of section 95A of the Companies 
Ordinance, 1984.

6. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 2013 2012

Note (Rupees in ‘000)

Trade creditors [including retention money of Rs 439.910 million 

  (2012: Rs 657.293 million)]  2,868,215  3,131,321 

Accrued liabilities  1,342,056  1,462,130 

Advances from customers

    For goods  430,575  573,815 

    For projects and services  1,482,805  1,017,523 

Staff retirement benefits - gratuity 6.1  278,920  227,735 

Interest accrued on short-term borrowings  29,320  413 

Unearned portion of revenue and maintenance contracts  97,059  99,806 

Workers' Profits Participation Fund –  3,093 

Workers' Welfare Fund  28,865  28,865 

Unclaimed dividend  18,344  14,956 

Derivative financial instruments –  11,469 

Withholding tax payable  12,195  41,446 

Other liabilities  244,481  288,398 

6.2  6,832,835  6,900,970 

6.1 Staff retirement benefits - Gratuity

 The actuarial valuation of gratuity scheme was carried out on September 30, 2013. The Projected Unit Credit Method, using the following 
significant financial assumptions has been used for the actuarial valuation: 

	 •	 Discount	rate	13.00%	per	annum	compound	(2012:	11.50%).
	 •	 Expected	rate	of	increase	in	salaries	13.00%	per	annum	(2012:	9.25%).
	 •	 Expected	rate	of	return	on	plan	assets	13.00%	per	annum	(2012:	11.50%).
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The amounts recognised in the balance sheet are as follows: 2013 2012

Note (Rupees in ‘000)

Fair value of plan assets 6.1.1  312,671  409,152 

Present value of defined benefit obligation 6.1.2  (591,591)  (636,887)

Deficit - recognised in the balance sheet 6.1.3  (278,920)  (227,735)

6.1.1 Movement in the fair value of plan assets

Opening balance  409,152 375,936 

Interest income  58,527 47,165 

Contributions made by the Company  105,588  89,296 

Benefits paid  (251,260) (116,386)

Actuarial (loss) / gain  (9,336) 13,141 

 312,671  409,152 

6.1.2 Movement in the present value of defined benefit obligation

Opening balance  636,887 579,892 

Current service cost  48,588 49,490 

Interest expense  69,260 68,956 

Benefits paid  (251,260) (116,386)

Actuarial loss  88,116 54,935 

 591,591  636,887 

6.1.3 Movement in net liability in the balance sheet is as follows:

Opening balance of liability  (227,735)  (203,956)

Expense recognised for the year 6.1.4  (59,321)  (71,281)

Contributions made by the Company  105,588  89,296 

Net actuarial losses for the year recognised in OCI  (97,452)  (41,794)

 (278,920)  (227,735)

6.1.4 The following amounts have been charged in the profit and loss account 

   in respect of these benefits:

Current service cost  48,588  49,490 

Interest expense  69,260  68,956 

Interest income on plan assets  (58,527)  (47,165)

 59,321  71,281 

6.1.5 Major categories / composition of plan assets are as follows: 2013 2012

------------------ % ------------------

Debt instruments  91 86 

Cash and cash equivalents  9 14 

 100 100 
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6.1.6  Historical information

As at September 30, 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009

------------------------------------------------- (Rupees in '000) ------------------------------------------------

Fair value of plan assets  312,671 409,152  375,936 402,338 338,082 

Present value of defined benefit obligation  (591,591)  (636,887)  (579,892)  (627,045)  (545,577)

Deficit  (278,920) (227,735)  (203,956)  (224,707)  (207,495)

6.1.7 The expected interest income on plan assets is taken as weighted average of the expected investment return on different assets of 
the gratuity fund. 

6.1.8 Actual interest income on plan assets for the year ended September 30, 2013 was Rs 49.191 million (2012: Rs 60.306 million). 

6.1.9 As per the recommendation of the actuary, the Company plans to contribute Rs 50.639 million to the gratuity fund during the year 
2014.

6.2 These include sums, aggregating to Rs 1,621.505 million (2012: Rs 754.137 million), due to related parties.

7. PROVISIONS Warranties Liquidated Losses on Total
damages sales contracts

Balance at beginning of the year  526,233  474,356  40,187  1,040,776 

Additional provision  276,203  283,875  743,557  1,303,635 

Cost incurred / imposed  (188,620)  (277,640)  (47,370)  (513,630)

Reversal of unutilised amounts  (59,066)  (151,829)  (34,116)  (245,011)

Balance at end of the year  554,750  328,762  702,258  1,585,770 

8. SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS 2013 2012

Note (Rupees in ‘000)

Short-term loans 

Secured 8.1  1,750,000 –

Short-term running finances
Unsecured - from related party 8.2  644,590  2,382,990 

 - from others 8.3 –    167,337 

 644,590  2,550,327 

Secured - from others 8.4  223,801  246,116 

 868,391  2,796,443 

 2,618,391  2,796,443 

8.1	 This	represents	loans	obtained	from	a	bank	in	Pakistan	at	mark-up	rate	of	1	month	KIBOR	+	0.2%	(9.17%	per	annum)	and	are	secured	
against the joint hypothecation of inventories of finished goods, work-in-process, raw materials and components and present and 
future trade receivables. 

8.2 This facility is available from Siemens Financial Services (SFS) of Siemens AG, utilised in respect of the projects being undertaken in 
the	United	Arab	Emirates	(UAE).	The	interest	on	this	facility	ranges	between	0.54%	and	1.21%	per	annum	(2012:	1.19%	and	1.39%	per	
annum).

8.3 These	facilities	available	from	various	banks	in	the	UAE	aggregated	to	Rs	145	million	(2012:	Rs	516	million)	at	interest	rate	of	4.20%	per	
annum	(2012:	4.18%	and	4.25%	per	annum).

8.4 These facilities available from various banks in Pakistan aggregated to Rs 2,850 million (2012: Rs 1,420 million). The mark-up on these 
facilities	ranges	between	9.22%	and	11.04%	per	annum	(2012:	11.16%	and	14.44%	per	annum).	These	facilities	are	secured	against	the	
joint hypothecation of inventories of finished goods, work-in-process, raw materials and components and present and future trade 
receivables. 
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8.5 Outstanding letters of credit and guarantees 2013 2012

(Rupees in ‘000)
(i) Outstanding Letters of credit 

    -    limit  1,909,000  2,846,314 

    -    unutilised portion  1,583,812  1,281,874 

(ii) Outstanding Guarantees

    -    limit  8,048,000  9,114,724 

    -    unutilised portion  2,744,237  3,248,918 

9. TAXATION - Net

Provision for taxation  2,000,634  1,648,543 

Advance tax  (768,446)  (360,120)

 1,232,188  1,288,423 

10. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 

 Contingencies

 (i) The Company is defending various suits filed against it in various courts in Pakistan for sums, aggregating to Rs 197.839 million, related 
to its business operations. The Company’s management is confident, based on the advice of its legal advisors, that these suits will be 
decided in Company‘s favour and, accordingly, no provision has been made for any liability against these law suits in these financial 
statements.

2013 2012

(Rupees in ‘000)

(ii) Post dated cheques issued to the Collector of Customs against import duty  65,762 –   

 Commitments:

 (i) As at September 30, 2013 capital expenditure contracted for but not incurred amounted to Rs 10.490 million (2012: Rs 0.737 million).

 (ii) The Company has entered into lease arrangements for vehicles with a commercial bank. The aggregate amount of these arrangements 
as at September 30, 2013 are as follows:

2013 2012

(Rupees in ‘000)

   -   Not later than one year  5,930 –   

   -   Later than one year but not later than five years  16,269 –   

 22,199 –   

11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 2013 2012

Note (Rupees in ‘000)

Operating assets  11.1  1,379,476  1,530,258 

Plant, machinery and equipment under installation  3,571  13,763 

 1,383,047  1,544,021 
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11.1 Operating assets

 As at October 1, 2012  During the year ended September 30, 2013  As at September 30, 2013 

2013

 Cost  
 Accumulated 
 depreciation  

Accumulated 
 impairment 

 Net book 
 value  

 Additions / 
 (deletions)  

 Depreciation /  
 (on deletions) 

 Impairment  
 (on 

deletion)*

 Net book 
 value of  

disposals
 Cost  

Accumulated 
 depreciation  

 Accumulated 
 impairment 

 Net book 
 value  

Depreciation 
rates as a
% of cost

----------------------------------------------------------------------------------- (Rupees in ‚000) -----------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Leasehold land  597,160 –    –     597,160 –    –    –    –     597,160 –    –     597,160 –

Buildings on leasehold land  441,145  136,162 –     304,983 –     11,822 –    –     441,145  147,984 –     293,161 2.5 & 10

Plant and machinery  1,113,739  620,797  16,380  476,562  7,971  76,593  11,611  7,875  1,074,198  657,753  27,991  388,454 10,20,25

 (47,512)  (39,637) & 100

Tools and patterns  254,155  224,805  924  28,426  1,678  13,899  (641)  240  251,115  234,226  283  16,606 50 & 100

 (4,718)  (4,478)

Furniture and equipment  367,937  322,400  1,669  43,868  15,680  27,679  (1,234)  1,841  318,439  286,742  435  31,262 20,25,33.33

 (65,178)  (63,337) & 100

Vehicles  334,758  249,245  6,254  79,259  25,722  33,275  (95)  18,968  273,674  220,799  42  52,833 25 & 50

 (86,806)  (61,721)  (6,117)

 3,108,894  1,553,409  25,227  1,530,258  51,051  163,268  9,641  28,924  2,955,731  1,547,504  28,751  1,379,476 

    (204,214)  (169,173)  (6,117) *    

11.2 Property, plant and equipment include items, having an aggregate cost of Rs 857.384 million (2012: Rs 914.433 million), which have been 
fully depreciated and are still in use of the Company.

 As at October 1, 2011  During the year ended September 30, 2012  As at September 30, 2012

2012

 Cost  
 Accumulated 
 depreciation  

Accumulated 
 impairment 

 Net book 
 value  

 Additions / 
 (deletions)  

 Depreciation /  
 (on deletions) 

 Impairment  
 (on 

deletion)*

 Net book 
 value of  

disposals
 Cost  

Accumulated 
 depreciation  

 Accumulated 
 impairment 

 Net book 
 value  

Depreciation 
rates as a
% of cost

----------------------------------------------------------------------------------- (Rupees in ‚000) -----------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Leasehold land  597,160 –  –      597,160  –      –      –      –      597,160  –      –      597,160 –

Buildings on leasehold land  441,145  124,373  –      316,772  –      11,789  –      –      441,145  136,162  –      304,983 2.5 & 10

Plant and machinery  1,029,692  541,296  –      488,396  86,220  80,340  16,380  1,334  1,113,739  620,797  16,380  476,562 10,20,25

 (2,173)  (839) & 100

Tools and patterns  246,493  205,912  –      40,581  8,115  19,291  924  55  254,155  224,805  924  28,426 50 & 100

 (453)  (398)

Furniture and equipment  398,183  340,043  –      58,140  23,896  31,863  1,669  4,636  367,937  322,400  1,669  43,868 20,25,33.33

 (54,142)  (49,506) & 100

Vehicles  335,252  256,837  –      78,415  46,631  36,918  6,254  2,615  334,758  249,245  6,254  79,259 25 & 50

 (47,125)  (44,510)

 3,047,925  1,468,461  –  1,579,464  164,862  180,201  25,227  8,640  3,108,894  1,553,409  25,227  1,530,258 

      (103,893)  (95,253)      
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11.3 Details of property, plant and equipment disposed off during the year

Original 
cost

 Accumulated 
 depreciation  

and 
 impairment 

 Net book  
 value 

 Sale  
 proceeds 

 Mode of  
 disposal 

Name and address of 
purchaser 

----------------------- (Rupees in ‚000) -----------------------

Plant and machinery

Concrete Batching Plant 6,500 4,442  2,058 2,404 Auction Mr. Abdul Aziz Juma- D-110, 
Bl-4, FB Area, Karachi.

Diesel Generator Set 1,202 120  1,082 601 Company policy Mr. Syed Asadullah - Ex 
employee

Diesel Generator Set 1,094 91  1,003 – Settlement 
agreement

Mr. Nasim Siddiqui - Ex 
employee

Air Compressor 870 203  667 175 Auction Mr. Adeel Aqeel - House 
D-23/5, Nazimabad No. 3, 
Karachi.

Welding Rectifier 202 71  131 – Scrap —
–

Welding Rectifier 202 71  131 – Scrap —
–

Welding Rectifier 202 71  131 – Scrap —
–

Welding Rectifier 202 71  131 – Scrap —
–

Welding Rectifier 147 88  59 – Scrap —
–

Welding Rectifier 147 88  59 – Scrap —
–

Welding Rectifier 147 88  59 – Scrap —
–

Vacuum Pump 296 173  123 – Scrap —

Concrete Mixture Machine 240 66  174  203 Auction Mr. Abdul Aziz Juma- D-110, 
Bl-4, FB Area, Karachi.

Concrete Mixture Machine 185 62  123  144 Auction ---------------- do ----------------

Concrete Mixture Machine 203 81  122  142 Auction ---------------- do ----------------

Concrete Mixture Machine 197 97  100  117 Auction ---------------- do ----------------

Items with book value below 
Rs 50,000 each

 35,476  33,754  1,722  2,065 Various Various

 47,512  39,637  7,875  5,851 

Tools and patterns

Items with book value below 
Rs 50,000 each

 4,718  4,478  240  20 Various Various

 4,718  4,478  240  20 

Furniture and equipment

Laptop  76  23  53  60 Insurance claim

Laptop  76  23  53  50 Insurance claim

Items with book value below 
Rs 50,000 each

 65,026  63,291  1,735  1,975 Various Various

 65,178  63,337  1,841  2,085 
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12. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 2013 2012

Note (Rupees in ‘000)

Software  12.1  736  781 

Software under development  15,640 –

 16,376  781 

12.2 Intangible assets include items, having an aggregate cost of Rs 86.799 million (2012: Rs 86.836 million), which have been fully amortised 
and are still in use of the Company.

 

Original 
cost

 Accumulated 
 depreciation  

and 
 impairment 

 Net book  
 value 

 Sale  
 proceeds 

 Mode of  
 disposal 

Name and address of 
purchaser 

----------------------- (Rupees in ‚000) -----------------------

Vehicles

Car  25,219  8,219  17,000  17,000 Settlement 
agreement

Mr. Ali Hamdani - Ex Chief 
Executive Officer

Car  1,879  1,292  587  587 Company policy Mr. Mansoor Iqbal Khan - Ex 
employee

Car  1,848  1,270  578  616 Company policy Mr. Nazir Muhammad - Ex 
employee

Car  1,269  925  344  344 Company policy Mr. Shafqat Hussain Malik  
- Ex employee

Car  1,849  1,618  231  462 Company policy Mr. Muhammad Mehdi - Ex 
employee

Car  1,269  1,084  185  317 Company policy Mr. Mehtabuddin - Ex 
employee

Items with book value below 
Rs 50,000 each

 53,473  53,430  43  12,403 Various Various

 86,806  67,838  18,968  31,729 

September 30, 2013  204,214  175,290  28,924  39,685 

September 30, 2012  103,893  95,253  8,640  29,844 

 As at October 1, 2012 
 During the year ended 

September 30, 2013  As at September 30, 2013 
 Cost   Accumulated 

 amortisation 
 Net book  Additions /  Amortisation /  

 (on scrap) 
 Net book  Cost   Accumulated  Net book Amortisation

rate as a
% of cost

 value   (scrap)  value of   amortisation  value  
scrap

----------------------------------------------------------------  (Rupees in ‘000) ----------------------------------------------------------------

2013  87,797  87,016  781  250  295 –  87,838  87,102  736 33.33 
 (209)  (209)

2012  86,993  86,743  250  804  273 –    87,797  87,016  781 33.33 
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13. Depreciation and amortisation have been allocated as follows:

 Depreciation  Amortisation 2013 2012

Total Total

Note ----------------------------- (Rupees in ‘000) -----------------------------

Cost of sales  24.1  125,959  227  126,186  137,413 

Marketing and selling expenses  25  28,615  52  28,667  31,752 

General administrative expenses  26  8,694  16  8,710 11,309 

 163,268  295  163,563  180,474 

14. LONG-TERM LOANS AND TRADE RECEIVABLES 2013 2012

Note (Rupees in ‘000)

Loans 
 Considered good - secured

  Due from executives 14.1 & 14.2 –    371 

  Due from other employees 14.1  591  642 

 591  1,013 

  Receivable within one year shown under 

      current assets 19  (270)  (742)

  Long term portion  321  271 

  Discounting to present value  (73)  (60)

 248  211 

Trade receivables
  Considered good 409,764  888,161 

  Considered doubtful  155,107  23,106 

 564,871  911,267 

  Provision for doubtful trade receivables  (155,107)  (23,106)

  Discounting to present value  (11,811)  (34,096)

 397,953  854,065 

398,201 854,276 

14.1 These represent interest free housing loans provided to the executives and other employees in accordance with the Company’s policy. 
The loans are secured against the respective assets for which the loans have been granted and are recoverable in periods ranging 
between one and ten years in equal monthly installments.

14.2 Reconciliation of carrying amount of loans 2013 2012

   to executives (Rupees in ‘000)

Balance at the beginning of the year  371  1,438 

Repayments  (371)  (1,067)

–    371 

Maximum amount outstanding at end of any month

  during the year against loans to executives  337  1,167 
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15. DEFERRED TAX ASSET 2013 2012

(Rupees in ‘000)

Debit / (credit) balances arising in respect of:

Provision for: 

   - doubtful trade receivables, due against construction work

         in progress, deposits and other receivables  377,149  453,626 

   - obsolete and slow moving items of inventories  53,773  106,345 

   - liquidated damages  85,780  147,817 

   - warranties  175,968  207,209 

   - losses on sales contracts  183,231  12,508 

   - others  23,487  47,446 

Actuarial losses ( routed through OCI )  86,968  80,609 

Discounting of long-term receivables  3,101  10,644 

Unadjusted tax losses / tax credits  633,289  489,058 

Accelerated tax depreciation and amortisation  (67,077)  (118,916)

 1,555,669  1,436,346 

16. INVENTORIES 2013 2012

Note (Rupees in ‘000)

Raw materials and components  886,892  1,326,168 

Work-in-process  675,628  1,046,251 

Finished goods 933,057 1,285,033 

16.1  2,495,577  3,657,452 

Provision for slow moving and obsolete items  (410,369)  (679,009)

 2,085,208  2,978,443 

Goods-in-transit  –   6,966 

 2,085,208  2,985,409 

16.1 These include items, costing Rs 269.796 million (2012: Rs 389.880 million) valued at their net realisable value of Rs 202.881 million 
(2012: Rs 247.624 million).

17. TRADE RECEIVABLES 2013 2012

Note (Rupees in ‘000)
Considered good

Due from related parties 17.1  50,439  96,386 

Due from others  6,048,962  6,585,375 

 6,099,401  6,681,761 

Considered doubtful - others  1,058,302  1,217,006 

 7,157,703  7,898,767 

Provision for doubtful receivables  (1,058,302)  (1,217,006)

 6,099,401  6,681,761 
    

17.1 These represent amounts due from Rousch (Pakistan) Power Limited.
     
17.2 For ageing analysis and movement of provision, refer note 42.2.
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18. DUE AGAINST CONSTRUCTION WORK IN PROGRESS 2013 2012

Note (Rupees in ‘000)

Considered good  3,999,116  3,282,899 

Considered doubtful  97,909  88,536 

 4,097,025  3,371,435 

Provision for doubtful construction work in progress  (97,909)  (88,536)

 3,999,116  3,282,899 

19. LOANS AND ADVANCES

Considered good

Current portion of loans due from:

                      Executives  –    350 

                      Other employees 270  392 

14  270  742 

Advances to:

                      Executives  70 –   

                      Suppliers  78,701  83,287 

                      Other employees  5,996  5,740 

 84,767  89,027 

 85,037  89,769 

20. DEPOSITS AND SHORT-TERM PREPAYMENTS 

Deposits 

  Considered good  132,210  128,603 

  Considered doubtful  34,657  40,007 

 166,867  168,610 

    Provision for doubtful deposits  (34,657)  (40,007)

 132,210  128,603 

Prepayments  15,458  8,659 

 147,668  137,262 

21. OTHER RECEIVABLES

  Considered good

    Sales tax refundable  119,976  238,827 

    Accrued mark-up  15,273  10,972 

    Derivative financial instruments  1,099 –   

    Others 21.1  207,093  41,223 

 343,441  291,022 

  Considered doubtful

    Sales tax refundable  51,772  51,772 

    Others  47,728  35,295 

 99,500  87,067 

 442,941  378,089 

   Provision against doubtful other receivables  (99,500)  (87,067)

 343,441  291,022 

21.1 This includes amount of Rs 97.358 million (2012: Nil) recoverable from customers on account of input sales tax against international 
tender in accordance with the respective contractual provisions.
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22. CASH AND BANK BALANCES 2013 2012

Note Rupees in ‘000

With banks in

    Current accounts  505,850  143,818 

    Deposit accounts  –    1,092,886 

 505,850  1,236,704 

Cheques in hand  154,903  59,361 

Cash in hand  2,950  2,844 

 663,703  1,298,909 

23. NET SALES AND SERVICES

Execution of contracts - outside Pakistan  1,892,413  2,584,064 

 - local  3,712,417  2,895,491 

 5,604,830  5,479,555 

Sale of goods - outside Pakistan  29,311  1,113 

 - local  7,869,181  7,446,855 

 7,898,492  7,447,968 

Rendering of services - outside Pakistan  267,148  143,970 

 - local  480,993  2,020,653 

 748,141  2,164,623 

Gross sales and services  14,251,463  15,092,146 

Sales tax  (1,212,269)  (1,258,072)

 13,039,194  13,834,074 

Related to discontinued operations  (829,897)  (1,711,919)

 12,209,297  12,122,155 

24. COST OF SALES AND SERVICES

Opening inventory of finished goods  1,285,033  778,044 

Cost of goods manufactured and services rendered  24.1  11,735,951  12,831,010 

Finished goods purchased  623,610  594,844 

 13,644,594  14,203,898 

Closing inventory of finished goods  (933,057)  (1,285,033)

 12,711,537  12,918,865 

Related to discontinued operations  (765,328)  (1,974,125)

 11,946,209  10,944,740 
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24.1 Cost of goods manufactured and services rendered  2013 2012

Note (Rupees in ‘000)

Opening inventories

Raw materials and components  1,326,168  1,266,499 

Goods-in-transit  6,966  319,484 

Work-in-process  1,046,251  1,476,900 

  2,379,385  3,062,883 

Purchase of goods and services  7,258,656  8,807,913 

Salaries, wages and employees welfare expenses  1,941,920  2,127,143 

Gratuity  39,676  43,731 

Provident fund contribution  30,714  31,951 

Royalty  43,891  59,215 

Commission  19,190  22,772 

Fuel, power and water  210,868  239,132 

Repairs and maintenance  86,538  103,540 

Rent, rates and taxes  123,888  168,770 

Liquidated damages  143,561  (297,691)

Warranty  73,825  (47,144)

Losses on sales contracts  662,070  (28,119)

Insurance  43,404  38,573 

(Reversal) / provision for slow moving and obsolete 

     items of inventories-net  (133,164)  163,157 

IT, networking and data communication  105,263  103,576 

Depreciation and amortisation 13  126,186  137,413 

Impairment on property, plant and equipment  14,816  19,110 

Travelling and conveyance  164,710  167,467 

Transportation  107,712  90,457 

Stationery, telex and telephone  37,930  65,933 

Security  30,350  34,756 

Exchange (gain) / loss (114,595) 93,467 

Legal and professional charges 9,945 6,565 

Bank charges 29,367 46,191 

Others  61,943  79,601 

 13,498,049  15,340,362 

Closing inventories

Raw materials and components  (886,892)  (1,326,168)

Goods-in-transit  –    (6,966)

Work-in-process  (675,628)  (1,046,251)

  (1,562,520)  (2,379,385)

 11,935,529  12,960,977 

Sale of scrap  (199,578)  (129,967)

 11,735,951  12,831,010 
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25. MARKETING AND SELLING EXPENSES 2013 2012
Note (Rupees in ‘000)

Salaries and employees welfare expenses  466,597  518,658 
Gratuity  16,656  21,060 
Provident fund contribution  12,550  15,239 
Fuel, power and water  33,827  17,428 
Repairs and maintenance  15,871  15,201 
Rent, rates and taxes  14,340  14,260 
Advertising and sales promotion  27,510  9,570 
Warranty –  4,428 
Other contractual obligations –  (1,858)
Insurance  9,377  10,191 
Provision for doubtful trade receivables - net  152,718  83,913 
Provision / (reversal of provision) for doubtful construction  
   work in progress  9,374  (8,602)
Provision for doubtful deposits and other receivables- net  7,753  4,401 
Discounting of long-term loans and trade receivables  (22,272)  (45,071)
Advances written off –  2,579 
IT, networking and data communication  32,141  33,231 
Depreciation and amortisation 13  28,667  31,752 
Impairment on property, plant and equipment  6,208 –   
Travelling and conveyance  48,816  50,089 
Transportation  257  2,322 
Stationery, telex and telephone  13,158  20,323 
Security  4,241 –   
Legal and professional charges  6,155  3,593 
Bank charges  11,178  4,786 
Others  15,387  15,524 

 910,509  823,017 
Commission income  (129,374)  (118,967)
Sale of scrap  (7,699)  (1,768)

 773,436  702,282 
Related to discontinued operations  (110,052)  (144,560)

 663,384  557,722 

26. GENERAL ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Salaries and employees welfare expenses  114,586  184,745 
Gratuity  2,989  6,490 
Provident fund contribution  2,506  5,820 
Fuel, power and water  7,993  5,837 
Repairs and maintenance  4,257  3,326 
Rent, rates and taxes  2,718  1,525 
Insurance  1,019  2,033 
IT, networking and data communication  15,076  13,777 
Auditors' remuneration 34  5,355  4,525 
Depreciation and amortisation 13  8,710  11,309 
Impairment on property, plant and equipment  113  6,117 
Travelling and conveyance  10,668  16,636 
Transportation  19  563 
Stationery, telex and telephone  3,016  6,604 
Security  1,792 –   
Legal and professional charges  2,621  4,878 
Bank charges  1,596  2,015 
Others  18,014  22,069 

 203,048  298,269 
Sale of scrap  (559)  (1,271)

 202,489  296,998 
Related to discontinued operations  (14,136)  (29,918)

 188,353  267,080 
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2013 2012

(Rupees in ‘000)

27. OTHER OPERATING INCOME AND EXPENSES

Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment  10,761  21,204 

Liabilities written back  72,336  29,528 

Rental income  2,492  274 

 85,589 51,006 

Related to discontinued operations  1,554 (346)

Other operating income  87,143 50,660 

Reversal of provision for Workers' Profits Participation Fund  (3,093) –

Reversal of provision for Workers' Welfare Fund –    (10,705)

Other operating expenses  (3,093)  (10,705)

Net other operating income 90,236  61,365 

28. FINANCIAL INCOME AND EXPENSES

Interest on trade and other receivables  4,992  5,400 

Income on amounts placed with banks under deposit 

     accounts and TDRs 8,114  86,945 

Financial income  13,106 92,345 

Interest on Workers' Profits Participation Fund –  1,004 

Interest on short-term borrowings  186,689  52,200 

Interest on trade and other payables  14,706  15,197 

Commission on guarantees  72,984  65,198 

 274,379  133,599 

Related to discontinued operations  (1,528)  (1,078)

Financial expenses  272,851  132,521 

Net finance costs  (259,745)  (40,176)

29. INCOME TAX  

Current 

   For the year  196,748  111,675 

   For prior years  70,300  (169,147)

 267,048  (57,472)

Deferred  (112,964)  (989)

 154,084  (58,461)

Related to discontinued operations  (9,862)  7,234 

 144,222  (51,227)

29.1 During the year, provision for current tax is based on minimum tax. Accordingly, tax reconciliation is not presented in the financial 
statements.
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30. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
      
 During the year, the Company closed its ‘Diesel Generating Sets’, ‘Locally Manufactured Motors‘, and some other small businesses of 

the Industry Sector.      

 These operations did not meet the requirements of discontinued operations or assets classified as held for sale in accordance with 
IFRS - 5 ‘Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations‘ as at September 30, 2012 and accordingly during the year the 
comparative income statement has been re-presented to show these operations separately from continuing operations.   
  

 Profits attributable to the discontinued operations have been disclosed on the face of profit and loss account.  

 The following additional (reversals) / expenses have been recognised in respect of discontinued operations in the profit and loss 
account:

2013 2012

(Rupees in ‘000)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment  3,891  2,430 

Provision for obsolete item of inventories  (97,636)  135,774 

Employee termination benefits  86,238  65,417 

 (7,507)  203,621 

Cash flows from discontinued operations

Net cash flows from operating activities  221,783  150,324 

Net cash flows from investing activities  2,895  (760)

Net cash flows from discontinued operations  224,678  149,564 

 For segment reporting, the results of above operations have been reported as part of the ‘Industry Segment‘ (note 45).

31. BASIC AND DILUTED (LOSS) / EARNINGS PER SHARE 2013 2012

(Rupees in ‘000)

There is no dilutive effect on the basic earnings per share 

    of the Company, which is based on:

(Loss) / profit for the year from continuing operations  (902,380)  425,029 

Loss for the year from discontinued operations  (72,563)  (430,182)

Loss for the year  (974,943)  (5,153)

 (No. of shares) 

Weighted average number of Ordinary shares  8,247,037  8,247,037 

 (Rupees) 

From continuing operations  (109.42)  51.54 

From discontinued operations  (8.80)  (52.16)

Basic and diluted loss per share  (118.22)  (0.62)
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2013 2012

Note (Rupees in ‘000)

32. CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS

Loss before tax for the year  (820,859) (63,614)

Adjustment for non-cash expenses:
Depreciation and amortisation  163,563 180,474 

Impairment on property, plant and equipment  21,137  25,227 

(Reversal) / provision for slow moving and obsolete items

    of inventories-net  (133,164) 163,157 

Provision for doubtful trade receivables - net  152,718 83,913 

Provision / (reversal of provision) for doubtful construction 

    work in progress  9,374 (8,602)

Provision for doubtful deposits and other receivables- net  7,753  4,401 

Reversal of provision for Workers' Profits Participation Fund  (3,093) –   

Discounting of long-term loans and trade receivables  (22,272)  (45,071)

Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment  (10,761)  (21,204)

Liabilities written back  (72,336)  (29,528)

Gratuity  59,321  71,281 

Financial expenses  274,379  133,599 

Financial income  (13,106)  (92,345)

Adjustment for other items:
Long-term loans and trade receivables  346,346 117,396 

Long-term deposits and prepayments  (4,032) (1,266)

Retention money payable  (1,076) (18,755)

Other non-current liabilities  (7,372) (2,857)

Working capital changes 32.1  1,280,069 1,942,374 

 1,226,589  2,438,580 

32.1 Working capital changes

(Increase) / decrease in current assets
Inventories  1,033,365  176,509 

Trade receivables  561,643  2,085,563 

Due against construction work in progress  (725,590)  710,389 

Loans and advances  4,732  27,906 

Deposits and short-term prepayments  (5,726)  (8,418)

Other receivables  (60,551)  (60,243)

 807,873  2,931,706 

Increase / (decrease) in current liabilities
Trade and other payables  (72,798)  100,229 

Provisions  544,994  (1,089,561)

 472,196  (989,332)

 1,280,069  1,942,374 

33. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 2013 2012

Note (Rupees in ‘000)

Cash and bank balances 22  663,703  1,298,909 

Short-term borrowings 8  (868,391)  (2,796,443)

 (204,688)  (1,497,534)
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34. AUDITORS' REMUNERATION 2013 2012

Note (Rupees in ‘000)

Audit fee  3,341  3,175 

Special reports and certifications, review 

    of half yearly interim financial statements, audits of  

    Workers' Profits Participation Fund and Gratuity Fund  825  750 

Out of pocket expenses  1,189  600 

 5,355  4,525 

35. LONG-TERM CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS

Contract revenue for the year  5,535,039  5,184,907 

Contract revenue to date  51,670,358  72,000,622 

Contract costs incurred to date  46,366,284  63,519,807 

Gross profit realised to date  5,304,074  8,480,815 

Balance of advances received  1,260,425  805,877 

Retention money receivable  3,382,915  2,685,900 

Gross amount due from customers  4,485,451  5,737,976 

Estimated future costs to complete projects in progress 35.1  7,685,026  9,721,128 

35.1 As part of application of percentage of completion method on contract accounting, the plan costs are estimated. These estimates are 
based on the prices of materials and services applicable at that time, forecasted increases and expected completion date at the time 
of such estimation. Such estimates are reviewed at regular intervals. Any subsequent changes in the prices of materials and services 
compared to forecasted prices and changes in the time of completion affect the results of the subsequent periods.

36. PROVIDENT FUND 2013 2012

(Unaudited)  (Unaudited) 

Note (Rupees in ‘000)

Size of the fund  632,056  649,079 

Cost of investments made 36.1  607,840  619,050 

Percentage of investments made 96% 95%

Fair value of investments  607,927  619,081 

36.1 Break-up of investments in terms of amount and percentage of the size of the Fund are as follows:

2013 2012

(Unaudited) (Unaudited)

Investments  % of invest-
ment as size of 

the fund

Investments 	%	of	investment	
as size of the 

fund
(Rs '000) (Rs '000)

Treasury Bill  525,580 87%  87,560 14%

National Saving Schemes  –    –    378,000 61%

Term Finance Certificates  51,583 8%  79,254 13%

Pakistan Investment Bonds  30,677 5%  74,236 12%

 607,840 100%  619,050 100%

 The financial year end of the Provident Fund of the Company is June 30 each year.    

 Investments out of provident fund have been made in accordance with the provisions of the section 227 of the Companies Ordinance, 
1984 and the rules formulated for this purpose.      
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37. EMPLOYEES 2013 2012

              

Number of employees 1,190 2,221 

Average during the year 1,639 2,543 

38. REMUNERATION OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

 The aggregate amounts charged in the financial statements in respect of remuneration and fringe benefits of the chief executive, 
directors and executives of the Company are as follows:

2013 2012

Chief Chief

Executive Executives Executive Executives

-------------------------------------------- Rupees in '000) --------------------------------------------

Salaries and allowances - fixed  33,637  647,362  43,127  648,540 

Salaries and allowances - variable including bonus  15,977  263,996  18,000  138,701 

Compensation for loss of office –    177,960  110,198  22,891 

Retirement benefits and Company's contribution

  to provident fund –    74,864  3,690  69,485 

Perquisites and benefits:

-  Group insurance and medical / social security  2,760  10,776  15  14,460 

-  Share based benefits –    1,797  564  2,334 

-  Long service bonus –    8,269 –    10,120 

-  House maintenance, utilities and others  3,637  399  1,888 –   

 56,011  1,185,423  177,482  906,531 

Number of persons  1  357  1  347 

38.1 In addition to the above, the Chief Executive has also been provided with two Company maintained cars and security system alongwith 
security guards at residence.       

38.2 The aggregate amount charged in these financial statements in respect of directors‘ fee paid to nine directors (2012: nine) was Rs 3.451 
million (2012: Rs 5.100 million). 

38.3 Certain executives of the Company are also provided with free use of Company‘s cars in accordance with their entitlements. 

38.4 The above balances include an amount of Rs 87.342 million (2012: Rs 204.573 million) on account of compensation to key management 
personnel, the details of which are as follows:

2013 2012

(Rupees in ‘000)

Short-term benefits  85,603  88,811 

Compensation for loss of office –  110,198 

Post-employment benefits  1,138  4,586 

Other long-term benefits  184  131 

Share based benefits  417  847 

 87,342  204,573 
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39. SHARE BASED PAYMENTS

 Certain employees are entitled to participate in the share based payment plans of Siemens AG. Siemens AG grants stock awards as a 
form of share-based payment to the employees. These awards are subject to a restriction period of three to four years. Stock awards 
forfeit if the employment with the Company terminates prior to the expiration of the restriction period and can not be transferred, 
sold, pledged or otherwise encumbered. 

    
 The allocation of stock awards as a share-based payment has been increasingly tied to corporate performance criteria. The target 

achievement	for	the	performance	criteria	ranges	between	0%	and	200%.	 	 	 	 	

 Half of the annual target amount for stock awards is based on the average of earnings per share of the past three fiscal years of Siemens 
AG. The target attainment determines the number of stock awards upon allocation.

   
 The other half of the annual target amount for stock awards is based on the share price performance of Siemens AG‘s shares relative 

to the share price performance of five important competitors during the restriction period. The target attainment is determined during 
the restriction period for the stock awards and accordingly, determines the number of Siemens AG‘s Shares ultimately transferred 
following the restriction period. 

 These stocks are remeasured to their fair value at each reporting date. Details of stock awards are as follows:

2013 2012

Number of Awards

Balance as at beginning of the year  2,155  5,696 

Granted during the year  273  1,090 

Paid during the year  (807)  (817)

Expired / forfeited during the year  (631)  (3,814)

Balance as at end of the year  990  2,155 

 Total expenses for share based payments during the year ended September 30, 2013 was Rs 2.860 million (2012: Rs 13.545 million). 
The liabilities for cash settled arrangements as of September 30, 2013 aggregated to Rs 4.403 million (2012: Rs 8.623 million) and is 
reported under accrued liabilities (note 6).      
 

40. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES  

 Related parties comprise of Siemens AG (parent company), its subsidiaries and associates and other companies with common 
directorship with significant influence on other companies, employees retirement benefit funds and key management employees. 
Transactions with related parties can be summarised as follows:      

2013 2012

Note (Rupees in ‘000)
Parent company 

Sales of goods and rendering of services  209,586 70,269 

Purchases of goods and receipt of services  1,854,637 2,406,617 

Commission and allowances earned  68,546 94,953 

Dividends paid  654,134 54,511 

Associated companies

Sales of goods and rendering of services  92,714 622,236 

Purchases of goods and receipt of services  496,218 413,891 

Commission and allowances earned  60,060 24,014 

Financial expenses  20,689 48,347 

Provision for trade receivables  509 974 

Others

Dividends paid  60 5 

Contribution to employees' retirement benefits  151,358 142,306 

Compensation to key management personnel 38.4  87,342 204,573 
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40.1 Amounts due from and due to related parties, amounts due from executives and remuneration of the Chief Executive, directors and 
executives are disclosed in the relevant notes.     

41. PLANT CAPACITY AND ACTUAL PRODUCTION       

Capacity  Actual   Actual  

 Production   Production  

 2013  2012 

Electric transformers 3,000  MVA 1,482 MVA 1,494 MVA 

Switchgears & distribution boards 4,500  Nos. 1,330 Nos. 1,059 Nos. 

41.1 The Company has discontinued the operations of Diesel Generating Sets and Locally Manufactured Motors and Alternators during the 
year ended September 30, 2013.     
 

41.2 The under utilisation is mainly attributed to reduced demand.

42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

 The Company‘s financial liabilities mainly comprise trade and other payables and short-term borrowings. The main purpose of financial 
liabilities is to raise finance for the Company‘s operations. The Company‘s financial assets comprise loans to employees, deposits, trade 
and other receivables and cash and bank balances. The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. 

 The Board of Directors has the overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company‘s risk management framework. 
The Board is responsible for developing and monitoring the Company‘s risk management policies. 

42.1 Market risk

 Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market 
prices such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity price risks. The objective of market risk management is to manage and 
control market risk exposures within an acceptable range.

 Foreign currency risk

 Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in 
foreign exchange rates. The Company‘s exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the Company‘s 
operating activities in Pakistan, UAE and Afghanistan.

 The Company manages its foreign currency risk by hedging its exposure to fluctuations on the translations into Rupees by obtaining 
forward cover and swap transactions against its foreign currency denominated payables and receivables, where possible in line with 
the regulations of State Bank of Pakistan. In respect of anticipated future transactions, the following have been taken at the balance 
sheet date to hedge the foreign currency liabilities and receivables. 

2013 2012

Note (Rupees in ‘000)
Forward exchange contracts

-   Purchased value 405,643 1,121,012 

-   Fair value 406,608 1,109,409 

Swaps

-   Purchased value –   4,125 

-   Fair value –   4,259 

Options

-   Purchased value  17,795 –   

-   Fair value  17,929 –   
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 The Company‘s exposure to foreign currency risk in major currencies at their gross values is as follows:    
     

2013 2012

(AED in ‘000)

Trade and other receivables  112,587  201,402 

Cash and bank balances  86 –

Trade and other payables  (23,146)  (44,967)

Short-term running finances  (22,367)  (98,755)

 67,160  57,680 

2013 2012

(EUR in ‘000)

Trade and other receivables  2,926  3,310 

Trade and other payables  (6,972)  (3,592)

 (4,046)  (282)

2013 2012

(USD in ‘000)

Trade and other receivables  6,064  3,288 

Cash and bank balances  4,699  1,420 

Trade and other payables  (12,229)  (9,480)

 (1,466)  (4,772)

 The following is the demonstration of  the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in exchange rate of all currencies applied to 
assets and liabilities as at September 30, 2013 represented in foreign currencies, with all other variables held constant, of the Company‘s 
loss / profit before tax.

2013 2012

Change in exchange rate ± 1% 1%

Effect on loss / profit before tax (Rs '000) ±  30,877  11,810 

 Interest rate risk

 Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market 
interest rates. The Company‘s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rate relates primarily to the Company‘s short-term 
deposits and running finances. 

 The Company‘s policy is to keep its short-term running finances at the lowest level by effectively utilising the positive cash and bank 
balances. Further, the Company also minimises the interest rate risk by investing in fixed rate investments like Term Deposit Receipts.

 At the reporting date, the interest rate profile of the Company‘s interest bearing financial instruments was as follows:

2013 2012 2013 2012

Effective rates (%) (Rupees in '000)

Financial Assets

Cash and bank balances –   9.37 –    1,092,886 

Financial Liabilities

Short-term running finances (AED) 2.59 2.77  644,590  2,550,327 

Short-term borrowings (Rs) 10.06 12.67  1,973,801  246,116 

 2,618,391  2,796,443 
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 A change of 100 basis points (1%) in interest rates at the reporting date would have changed Company‘s loss / profit before tax for the 
year by the amount shown below, with all other variables held constant.

2013 2012

Change in interest rate ± 1% 1%

Effect on loss / profit before tax (Rs '000) ±  29,312  6,511 

 Equity price risk    
 
 Equity price risk is the risk of loss arising from movements in prices of equity investments. The Company is not exposed to any equity 

price risk, as the Company does not have any investment in equity shares.

42.2 Credit risk 
     
 Credit risk represents the accounting loss that would be recognised at the reporting date if counter parties fail completely to perform 

as contracted. It mainly comprise of trade receivables, due against construction work in progress, advances to suppliers, trade deposits 
and bank balances. The Company‘s maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is as follows: 

2013 2012

(Rupees in ‘000)
Category - Loans and receivables 

Loans to employees  518 953 

Advances to employees  6,066 5,740 

Advances to suppliers  78,701 83,287 

Trade deposits  137,026 133,875 

Trade receivables  6,497,354 7,535,826 

Due against construction work in progress  3,999,116 3,282,899 

Other receivables  275,237 104,791 

Bank balances  660,753 1,296,065 

 11,654,771 12,443,436 

 Concentration of credit risk           
          
 The sector wise analysis of receivables including trade receivables, due against construction work in progress, advances to suppliers 

and trade deposits based on their gross values is given below:
   

2013 2012

(Rupees in 
'000)

% (Rupees in 
‘000)

%

Government sector
Energy 6,428,793  52 5,135,751  41 

Communication 116,592  1 169,633  1 

Health 166,681  1 241,725  2 

Aviation 834,017  7 852,032  7 

Others 1,071,171  9 1,139,216  9 

Sub-total 8,617,254  70 7,538,357  60 

Private sector
Energy 2,356,720  19 3,380,417  27 

Communication 13,939  –   26,862  –   

Health 40,863  –   45,880  –   

Cement Industry 6,484  –   10,921  –   

Dealers and agents 54,371  1 75,659  1 

Others 1,267,622  10 1,437,060  12 

Sub-total 3,739,999  30 4,976,799  40 

Total 12,357,253  100 12,515,156  100 
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 Trade receivables           

 To mitigate the credit risk against trade receivables, the Company has a system of assigning credit limits to its customers based on an 
extensive credit rating scorecards. Outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored. The Company endeavors to cover the 
credit risks on government sector trade receivables, where possible, by restricting credit facility to the projects which are financed by 
multilateral financial institutions and / or financed by special allocation of funds by the provincial / federal governments. Business 
with government sector customers is also secured by way of inland letters of credit where possible. Credit risk on private sector is 
covered to the maximum extent possible through letters of credit. As at September 30, 2013, trade receivables amounting to Rs 1,521.318 
million (2012: Rs 507.796 million) were secured through letters of credit.     
   

 The ageing of trade receivables at the reporting date is as follows:     

2013 2012

(Rupees in ‘000)
Related parties

Not yet due  25,919  97,360 

Past due 1-180 days  25,029  –   

 50,948  97,360 

Less: Provision for impairment  (509)  (974)

 50,439  96,386 

Others

Not yet due  4,535,206  4,054,345 

Past due 1-180 days  1,733,026  1,858,711 

Past due 181-360 days  341,923  849,015 

Past due 361-720 days  425,291  356,879 

Past due 721-1080 days  66,738  672,679 

Over 1080 days  569,442  921,045 

 7,671,626  8,712,674 

Less: Provision for impairment  (1,212,900)  (1,239,138)

Less: Discounting on long-term receivables  (11,811)  (34,096)

 6,446,915  7,439,440 

6,497,354 7,535,826 

 The movement in the provision for impairment in respect of trade receivables during the year was as follows:

2013 2012

(Rupees in ‘000)

Balance at beginning of the year  1,240,112  1,162,007 

Provision made during the year - net  152,718  83,913 

Provision utilised against write offs  (179,421)  (5,808)

Balance at end of the year  1,213,409  1,240,112 

 Trade deposits and other receivables          

 The movement in the provision for impairment in respect of trade deposits and other receivables during the year was as follows:  

   

2013 2012

(Rupees in ‘000)

Balance at beginning of the year  127,074  122,673 

Provision made during the year - net  7,753  4,401 

Provision utilised against write offs  (670) –   

Balance at end of the year  134,157  127,074 



94  10 Information for Stakeholders 2 Our Profile  12 Our Company

 Cash and bank balances           

 The Company keeps its surplus funds with the banks having good credit rating. Currently the surplus funds are kept with banks having 
ratings of A1+ and A-1+.     
     

42.3 Liquidity risk
     
 Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able meet its financial obligations as they fall due. Prudent liquidity risk 

management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities, the availability of funding through an adequate amount 
of committed credit facilities and the ability to close out market positions. Due to the dynamic nature of the Company‘s business, the 
treasury maintains flexibility in funding by maintaining availability under control committed credit lines. The facilities available to the 
Company have been detailed in notes 8.1 to 8.4.     

 The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company‘s financial liabilities as at the reporting date.   
     

Carrying 
amount

Less than 12 
months

1 to 2 years 2 to 5 years

--------------------------------(Rupees in '000)----------------------------

Financial liabilities
2013

Long-term retention money  33,553 – 33,314 239 

Trade and other payables  4,502,416  4,502,416 – –

Short-term borrowings  2,618,391  2,618,391 – –

 7,154,360  7,120,807  33,314  239 

2012

Long-term retention money  34,629 – 19,100 15,529 

Trade and other payables  4,897,218  4,897,218 – –

Short-term borrowings  2,796,443  2,796,443 – –

 7,728,290  7,693,661  19,100  15,529 

43. FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES        
    
 The carrying values of all financial assets and liabilities are estimated to approximate their fair values.   

44. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT           

 The Company‘s objectives when managing capital is to safeguard the Company‘s ability to continue as a going concern in order to 
provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain a strong capital base.

 
 The Company manages its capital structure by monitoring return on net assets and makes adjustment to it in the light of changes in 

economic conditions. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to 
shareholders or issue new shares.     
    

 The Company is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements.
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45. INFORMATION ABOUT BUSINESS SEGMENTS

Energy Industry Infrastructure Healthcare Eliminations Total
2013 & Cities

-----------------------------------------------------(Rupees in '000)---------------------------------------------------------
REVENUE
Sales to external customers  7,501,365  2,922,566  2,258,758  356,505 –  13,039,194 
Inter-segment sales  720,776  116,374  1,091,107 –  (1,928,257) –   
Total revenue  8,222,141  3,038,940  3,349,865  356,505  (1,928,257)  13,039,194 

RESULT

Segment result  295,985  (66,404)  (778,041)  (96,316) –  (644,776)
Interest expense  (186,689)
Other operating income  2,492 
Interest income  8,114 
Income tax  (154,084)
Net loss for the year  (974,943)

OTHER INFORMATION

Capital expenditure 13,898 991 3,699 714  –   

Depreciation and amortisation  83,301  30,072  22,051  2,497  –   

Non-cash expenses other 
  than depreciation and amortisation (381)  (2,500)  82  (884)  –   

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Segment assets  8,803,057  1,600,590  2,670,402  379,608  –    13,453,657 

Segment liabilities  5,099,058  1,488,741  1,500,767  266,088  –    8,354,654 

2012

REVENUE

Sales to external customers  7,817,149  3,740,400  1,918,648  357,877  –  13,834,074 
Inter-segment sales  503,511  235,431  355,914 –  (1,094,856) –
Total revenue  8,320,660  3,975,831  2,274,562  357,877  (1,094,856)  13,834,074 

RESULT

Segment result  764,400  (700,689)  (109,172)  (62,873)  –    (108,334)
Unallocated reversal  10,705 

 (97,629)
Interest expense  (53,204)
Other operating income  274 
Interest income  86,945 
Income tax  58,461 
Net loss for the year  (5,153)

OTHER INFORMATION

Capital expenditure 22,378 15,762  6,432  1,562  –   

Depreciation and amortisation  81,469  36,108  26,168  3,564  –   
Non-cash expenses other 
  than depreciation and amortisation  (749)  7  623  440  –   

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Segment assets  9,879,942  2,287,290  2,124,268  403,127  –    14,694,627 

Segment liabilities  6,426,156  2,135,060  1,240,803  147,183  –    9,949,202 
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45.1 The Company is operating through four business segments, namely Energy, Industry, Infrastructure & Cities and Healthcare. The 
energy segment mainly relates to execution of sub-station projects under contracts, supply of transformers and other related power 
generation, transmission, and distribution equipment and related services. Industry segment includes designing, engineering and 
construction services, information technology services and supply and installation of motors, alternators and drives etc. Infrastructure 
& Cities segment includes designing, engineering and construction services in electrical field, supply and installation of sub-station 
automation and telecommunication systems and switchboards. Healthcare segment includes supply and services of healthcare 
equipment.

 
45.2 Geographical information
 Revenues from external customers     

2013 2012

(Rupees in ‘000)

Pakistan  10,816,245 10,909,310 

Afghanistan  1,009,158  130,350 

United Arab Emirates  915,160  2,490,847 

Germany  222,133  196,366 

Others  76,498  107,201 

 13,039,194  13,834,074 

 The revenue information above is based on the location of customers.

Non-current assets 2013 2012

(Rupees in ‘000)

Pakistan  1,446,552  1,593,242 

United Arab Emirates  358,884  809,309 

Afghanistan  1,492  1,799 

 1,806,928  2,404,350 

 Non-current assets for this purpose consist of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and other long-term receivables except 
for deferred tax asset.     
    

45.3 Transfer prices between operating segments are on commercial terms and conditions.    
  

45.4 Segment assets and liabilities         
  
 Reportable segments‘ assets are reconciled to total assets as follows:     

    

2013 2012

(Rupees in ‘000)

Segment assets for reportable segments  13,453,657  14,694,627 

Corporate assets  989,967  1,011,088 

Unallocated
Deferred tax asset  1,555,669  1,436,346 

Cash and bank balances  663,703  1,298,909 

Others  123,175  166,757 

Total assets as per balance sheet  16,786,171  18,607,727 
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 Reportable segments‘ liabilities are reconciled to total liabilities as follows:

2013 2012

(Rupees in ‘000)

Segment liabilities for reportable segments  8,354,654  9,949,202 

Corporate liabilities  150,487  126,635 

Unallocated
Trade and other payables  610,337  476,967 

Short-term borrowings  1,973,801  246,116 

Taxation - net  1,232,188  1,288,423 

Total liabilities as per balance sheet  12,321,467  12,087,343 

 Segment assets include all operating assets used by a segment and consist principally of receivables, inventories and property, plant 
and equipment, net of impairment and provisions but do not include deferred taxes. Segment liabilities include all operating liabilities 
and consist principally of accounts payable, advances and accrued and other liabilities.     
   

45.5 Segment performance is generally evaluated based on certain key performance indicators including business volume, gross profit, 
profit from operations, manufacturing and selling expenses and free cash flows.     
   

45.6 Interest income and expense are not allocated to segments, as this type of activity is driven by the central treasury function, which 
manages the cash position of the Company.     
   

46. OPERATIONS IN UAE         

 The Board of Directors of the Company in their meeting held on January 22, 2010 decided that the Company will cease to participate 
in further bidding in the UAE due to prevalent market situation. However, the Company will continue to execute the orders in hand 
which are valued at Rs 443 million as at September 30, 2013 (2012: Rs 917 million). The shareholders of the Company, in their Extra-
ordinary General Meeting held on March 4, 2010, also approved the decision.     
  

46.1 Results of the UAE Operations         

The following are the results of the UAE operations: 2013 2012

Note (Rupees in ‘000)

Net sales and services  885,141  2,449,524 

     Cost of sales and services  (571,377)  (2,018,746)

Gross profit  313,764  430,778 

     Marketing and selling expenses  712  13,454 

     General administrative expenses   (6,854)  (23,070)

 (6,142)  (9,616)

      Other operating expenses  (304)  (693)

Operating profit  307,318  420,469 

     Financial expenses  (69,436)  (94,968)

Profit before tax  237,882  325,501 

     Income tax  (10,460)  10,351 

Net profit for the year  227,422  335,852 
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2013 2012

(Rupees in ‘000)
46.2 Cash flows from the UAE Operations

Net cash in flows from operating activities  2,467,156  1,288,927 

Net cash in flows from investing activities  1,622  2,461 

Net cash in flows from UAE Operations  2,468,778  1,291,388 

46.3 Assets of the UAE Operations

Property, plant and equipment  565 1,514 

Long-term loans and trade receivables  358,319 807,795 

Inventories –   840 

Trade receivables - current  2,425,675 3,885,855 

Due against construction work in progress  1,052,093 1,450,821 

Loans and advances  422 4,628 

Deposits and short-term prepayments  4,423 4,276 

Other receivables  532 824 

 3,842,029  6,156,553 

46.4 Liabilities of the UAE Operations

Long term retention money  18,547 28,308 

Other non-current liabilities  187 676 

Trade and other payables  1,749,193 1,749,420 

Provisions  392,531 426,340 

Short-term running finances  644,589 2,550,327 

 2,805,047  4,755,071 

46.5 For segment reporting, the results of the UAE Operations have been reported as part of the ‘Energy Segment‘ (note 45).   
   

47. GENERAL         
   
47.1 These financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors of the Company in the meeting held on December 13, 

2013.     
    

       
  

 Guenter Zwickl Naeemuddin Khan 
 Chief Executive  Director
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Shareholding

Number of Shareholders From To Total Shares held

566 1 100 shares 21,266

473 101 500 shares 118,119

71 501 1,000 shares 54,791

57 1,001 5,000 shares 125,998

3 5,001 10,000 shares 22,470

5 10,001 15,000 shares 60,260

1 15,001 20,000 shares 19,000

1 20,001 25,000 shares 21,630

2 30,001 35,000 shares 65,100

1 35,001 40,000 shares 39,018

1 65,001 70,000 shares 69,531

1 85,001 90,000 shares 86,308

1 145,001 150,000 shares 148,131

1 200,001 205,000 shares 202,871

1 695,001 700,000 shares 698,741

1 1,040,001 1,045,000 shares 1,042,683

1 5,450,001 5,455,000 shares 5,451,120

1187 8,247,037

Siemens (Pakistan) Engineering Company Limited
Incorporation Number: CUIN 0000617

Pattern of holding of the Shares held by the Shareholders
As at September 30, 2013
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Particulars Shares held Percentage

Director
   Mr. Naeemuddin Khan 500 0.01

Associated companies,undertakings and related parties
   Siemens AG,Germany 5,451,120 66.10

NIT and ICP
National Bank of Pakistan-Trustee Deptt (NIT) 1,042,683 12.64

Banks 964,260 11.69
   National Bank of Pakistan 698,741
   The Bank of Punjab 202,871
   Faysal Bank Ltd 39,018
   The Bank of Khyber 21,630
   Invest Capital Investment Bank 2,000

Mutual Funds 583 0.01
   CDC Trustee AKD Index Tracker Fund 578
   N. H. Capital Fund Ltd 5

Insurance Companies 217,962 2.64
   Adamjee Insurance Co Ltd 148,131
   IGI Insurance Co Ltd 69,531
   Asia Care Health & Life  Insurance Co Ltd 300

General Public 351,620 4.26

Others 218,309 2.65
   Trustee National Bank of Pakistan Employees Pension Fund 86,308
   Acacia Partners LP 32,700
   Treet Corporation Ltd 32,400
   Acacia Conservation Fund-Offshore Ltd 13,500
   Trustee Mohammed Amin Wakf Estate                    11,790
   DJM Securities (Pvt) Ltd 10,100
   Pakistan National Shipping Corporation 6,930
   Mohammad Munir Mohammad Ahmed Khanani Securities (Pvt) Ltd 3,650
   Acacia Institutional Partners LP 3,400
   Trustee National Bank of Pakistan Employees Benevolent Fund Trust 3,029
   Intermarket Securities Ltd 2,650
   Pak Ping Carpets Pak (Pvt) Ltd 1,600
   CS Capital (Pvt) Ltd 1,019
   GRO Banyan Partners LP 1,000
   Y.H. Securities (Pvt) Ltd 1,000
   Sherman Securities (Pvt) Ltd 900
   Trustees Al-Badar Welfare Trust 864
   Highlink Capital (Pvt) Ltd 700
   Acacia II Partners  LP 500
   FDM Capital Securities (Pvt) Ltd 500
   Hameed Shafi Holdings (Pvt) Ltd 500
   Zillion Capital Securities Ltd 500
   HH Misbah Securities (Pvt) Ltd 500
   AWJ Securities (Pvt.) Ltd 400
   Pearl Securities Ltd 400
   Capital Vision Securities (Pvt) Ltd 400
   NCC- Pre Settlement Delivery Account 400
   Fikree`s (SMC-Pvt) Ltd. 240
   Dossa Cotton & General Trading(Pvt) Ltd 200
   Darson Securities (Pvt) Ltd 100
   Adeel & Nadeem Securities (Pvt) Ltd 100
   UHF Consulting (Pvt) Ltd 27
   IGI Finex Securities Ltd 1
   Stock Master Securities (Pvt.) Ltd 1

Total 8,247,037 100

Shareholders holding 5% or more voting interest
   Siemens AG,Germany                                                          5,451,120 66.10
   National Bank of Pakistan-Trustee Deptt.(NIT)                         1,042,683 12.64
   National Bank of Pakistan 698,741 8.47

Trades in share carried out by directors, executives and their spouses and minor children
   Spouse of one of the executive holds 600 shares

Siemens (Pakistan) Engineering Company Limited
Categories of Shareholders
As at September 30, 2013
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Registrar and Share Transfer Agent

In compliance with the requirements of section 204 (A) of Companies Ordinance 1984, THK Associates (Pvt.) Limited has been ap-
pointed as Share Registrar of the Company.

The address, Contact numbers and timings of THK Associates (Pvt.) Limited is given below:

 THK Associates (Pvt.) Limited
 Ground Floor,
 State Life Building-3,
 Dr. Ziauddin Ahmed Road,
 Karachi-75530.

 Telephone No. : (021) 111-000-322
 Fax : (021) 35655595‚

  Timings : 9:30 am to 12:30 pm & 2:30 pm to 4:30 pm
   (Monday to Friday) ‚

Share transfers, dividend payment and all other investor related matters are attended to and processed by our Registrar and 
Share Transfer Agent.
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Notice of Annual General Meeting

Notice is hereby given that the sixty first annual general meeting of the shareholders of Siemens (Pakistan) Engineering Company Limited will 
be held on Monday, January 20, 2014 at 10:30 a.m. at B-72, Estate Avenue, S.I.T.E., Karachi to transact the following business:

Ordinary business

1. To confirm the minutes of the annual general meeting held on January 10, 2013.

2. To receive and adopt the audited financial statements for the year ended September 30, 2013 and reports of the directors and auditors 
thereon.

3.	 To	consider	and	approve	cash	dividend	of	Rs	20	per	share	(200%)	for	the	year	ended	September	30,	2013.

4. To appoint auditors and to fix their remuneration for the year ending September 30, 2014. The present auditors Ernst & Young Ford 
Rhodes Sidat Hyder, Chartered Accountants, retire and being eligible have offered themselves for reappointment.

5. To transact such other ordinary business as may be placed before the meeting with the permission of the Chair.
 
Special business

6. To consider and pass with or without modification the following resolution as a special resolution for amending Article 115 of the 
Articles of Association of the Company:

 “The Directors and the alternate Directors may be paid out of the funds of the Company such remuneration for attending the meetings 
of the Directors or a committee of Directors and for performing extra services as the Directors may determine from time to time provided 
that the Managing Director, full time working Directors and Directors representing the majority shareholder shall not be entitled to 
remuneration for attending the meetings of the Directors or a committee of Directors provided further that remuneration shall be 
divided among the Directors and the alternate Directors in such proportion and manner as the Directors may determine“.

 
By order of the Board of Directors
 

Mohammad Rafi    
Company Secretary Karachi: December 27, 2013

Notes:

1. The Share Transfer Books of the company will remain closed from January 13, 2014 to January 20, 2014 (both days inclusive). Transfers 
received at company’s Share  Registrar  THK Associates (Pvt.) Limited, Ground Floor, State Life Building-3, Dr. Ziauddin Ahmed Road, 
Karachi-75530 by the close of business on January 12,2014 will be considered in time.

2. A member entitled to attend and vote at this meeting may appoint another member as his/her proxy to attend and vote on his/her 
behalf. 

 Proxy forms in order to be valid must be received at the Registered Office of the company not less than 48 hours before the time of 
meeting. A member shall not be entitled to appoint more than one proxy. A proxy must be a member.

3. CDC account holders will further have to follow the under mentioned guidelines as laid down in Circular No.1 dated January 26, 2000 
issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan.

 For Attending the Shareholders’ Meeting:

 i). In case of individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder and/or the person, whose  securities are in group account and 
their registration details are uploaded as per the  regulations, shall authenticate his/her identity by showing his/her original 
Computerized National Identity Card (CNIC) or original passport at the time of attending the meeting.

  The shareholders registered on CDC are also requested to bring their particulars, I.D.  numbers and account numbers in CDS.

 ii) In case of a corporate entity the Board of Directors’ resolution/Power of Attorney with  specimen signature of the nominee shall be 
produced (unless it has been provided earlier) at the time of meeting.
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 For Appointment of Proxies:

 i) In case of individual, the account holder or sub-account holder and/or the person whose securities are in group account and their 
registration details are uploaded as per the regulations, shall submit the proxy form as per requirement notified by the company. 

 ii) The proxy form shall be witnessed by two persons whose names, addresses and CNIC numbers shall be mentioned on the form. 

 iii) Attested copies of CNIC or the passport of the beneficial owners and the proxy shall be furnished with the proxy form. 

 iv) The proxy shall produce his/her original CNIC or original passport at the time of meeting. 

 v) In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors resolution/Power of Attorney with specimen signature shall be submitted along 
with proxy form to the company.

4. The statement under section 160(1)(b) of the Companies Ordinance, 1984 is given below :
   
 The Board of Directors in their meeting held on December 13, 2013 has decided to amend article 115 of the Articles of Association of 

the Company with the purpose to vest in the Board of Directors the authority of approval of remuneration of directors. It is clarified 
that the Managing Director, full time working Directors and Directors representing the majority shareholder will not be entitled to 
remuneration for attending Board and Committee meetings. The reason for the proposed amendment is to enable the remaining 
directors (comprising the director(s) representing minority shareholders and the Independent Director(s) to be paid as per market 
practice and changes can be made more expeditiously in case of any change in market practices..

 In order to incorporate this change the existing article 115 of the Articles of Association shall be replaced as following:

 “The Directors and the alternate Directors may be paid out of the funds of the Company such remuneration for attending the meetings 
of the Directors or a committee of Directors and for performing extra services as the Directors may determine from time to time provided 
that the Managing Director, full time working Directors and Directors representing the majority shareholder shall not be entitled to 
remuneration for attending the meetings of the Directors or a committee of Directors provided further that remuneration shall be 
divided among the Directors and the alternate Directors in such proportion and manner as the Directors may determine“.

 As regards the requirement in Section 160(1)(b) of the Companies Ordinance that this statement of special business disclose the nature 
and extent of the interest, if any, therein of every director (whether directly or indirectly) members are hereby informed that while the 
individual directors have a personal interest insofar as the matter involves their remuneration, it is clarified that: (a) the law permits 
remuneration of directors to be determined by the Board collectively in accordance with the Company’s articles of association; (b) the 
Managing Director, full time working Directors and Directors representing the majority shareholder will not be entitled to remuneration 
for attending Board and committee meetings and can only be remunerated for performing extra services and, on the other hand, the 
director(s) representing minority shareholders and the Independent Director(s) will be entitled to remuneration for attending Board 
and committee meetings (proposed to be initially set at the equivalent of 2,000 Euros per meeting) and for performing extra services; 
(c) for the reasons explained above, it is advantageous for the Board, rather than the Company in general meeting, to determine the 
remuneration of Directors; (d) the Board, while deciding remuneration of directors, shall ensure that the provisions of the Companies 
Ordinance and the Code of Corporate Governance shall be strictly adhered to in determining the remuneration including the 
requirements that (i) no  director   shall   be   involved   in   deciding   his/her   own remuneration, (ii) levels of remuneration shall be 
appropriate to attract and retain the directors needed to govern the Company successfully, and (iii) remuneration shall not be at a level 
that could be perceived to compromise their independence. 





Proxy Form

I/We __________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

of _______________________________________________  in the district of  ______________________________________________being a member

of  SIEMENS (PAKISTAN) ENGINEERING COMPANY LIMITED  hereby appoint

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

or failing him  _________________________________________________ of _____________________________________________________________

as my/our proxy to vote for me/us and my/our behalf at the Annual General Meeting of the company to be held at Karachi on January 20,2014 

and at any adjournment thereof.

Dated this __________________________ day of _____________________

Signature of the shareholder ______________________________________

Folio No:________________________________________________________

CDS Account No: ________________________________________________

 Witnesses:

 1. Signature: ____________________________________________

  Name: ________________________________________________

  Address: ______________________________________________

  CNIC No.

 2. Signature: ____________________________________________

  Name: ________________________________________________

  Address: ______________________________________________

  CNIC No.

Notes:

1. This proxy form duly completed and signed across a five rupees revenue stamp must be deposited at the company’s registered office 
not less than 48 hours before the time for holding the meeting.

2. Witnessed by two persons for CDC account holder only.

3. CDC account holder shall also submit attested copies of their CNIC/passport and that of the proxy.

4. The proxy of CDC account holder shall produce his/her original CNIC/passport at the time of the meeting.

5. In case of corporate entity, the Board’s resolution/power of attorney with specimen signature of the proxy shall be submitted along 
with this form.

Revenue
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Siemens (Pakistan) Engineering Co. Ltd.
UAN: 111-077-088

Karachi
Head Office and Plant,
B-72 Estate Avenue, S.I.T.E, 
Karachi- 75700.
Phone: +9221-32574910-19 | 32592000 
UAN: +9221-111-077-088
Fax: +9221-32566218

Siemens Learning Centre
Office Wing Suite No 209(b),
2nd Floor, Park Tower,
Shahra-e-Firdousi, Clifton,
Karachi-75600.
Phone: +9221-35876391
 +9221-35876386

Islamabad
Sector I-9/2, Industrial Area, 
P.O. Box 1129,
Islamabad  
Phone: +9251-4103381
UAN: +9251-111-077-088
Fax: +9251-4432049

Quetta
55-B, Chaman Housing Scheme, 
Airport Road,
Quetta-87300. 
Phone: +9281-2831311-12, 
 +9281-2864071 
Fax: +9281-2831313
Lahore
15-A, State Life Building,
Davis Road,
P.O.Box No. 293,
Lahore-54000. 
Phone: +9242-36278758-67
UAN: +9242-111-077-088 
Fax: +9242-36363126

Peshawar
6th Floor, State Life Building,
The Mall,
Peshawar-25000.
Phone: +9291-5276029 
Fax: +9291-5276187

Dubai Branch
Office No. 2005, 2nd Floor, 
Al Waha Community Building,
Nad Al Hamar Road, 
P.O.Box No. 35397,
Ras Al Khor, Dubai, UAE.
Phone: +97104-2898071-75
Fax: +97104-2898056

Afghanistan Branch
House No. 635,
Street No. 11, D-6,
Darul Aman Road, Karteh Seeh,
Kabul, Afghanistan.
Phone: +9320-2500640
Fax: +9320-2500641




